
 
 
 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street 

Monday, September 10, 2012 
 

I. Moment of Silence 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
III. Approval of Minutes of the August 27, 2012 City Council Meeting  
 
IV. Approval of Agenda of the September 10, 2012 City Council Meeting 
 
 V.        Public Comment 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 
VI.       Redistricting Presentation 
             Presenter:  Bobby Bowers, Director of Office of Research and Statistics of South    
                                Carolina Budget and Control Board 
 
VII.      Public Hearing 
 
             A. Ordinance to Amend the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina Zoning Ordinance, 
 by Amending Section 206, Changes to District Boundaries, Specifically Parcel 7-
 13-01-032.00,  Located on 1585 East Main Street, which is Currently Zoned LOD, 
 Limited Office District to Zone B-1, Neighborhood Shopping District; and 
 Providing for Severability and an Effective Date. Bill Akkary and His Agent, 
 Craig Jacobs of Spencer Hines Properties, on Behalf of National Bank of SC, 
 Owner. The Purpose for the Zone Change Application is to allow the Property to 
 be Sold for Use as a Restaurant (First Reading) 
 Presenter:  Joshua Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
   
VIII.    Ordinances 
 
  A. Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Deed Conveying Two Vacant Lots in 
  the Timberwood Acres Subdivision to the Lower Spartanburg County Habitat 
  for Humanity   
  Presenter:  Wes Corrothers, Neighborhood Services Director 
 
             B.   Ordinance to Amend the Text of Section 512, Regulations for Video Casinos and 
  Poker Machines by Removing Current Subsections, and Amending Entire  
  Section to include the Allowances and Requirements for Defining “Internet  
  Cafes”, “Sweepstakes Promotions” and/or “Internet Sales”, and other Business 
  using  Electronic Gaming and Simulated Gambling Devices,  City of   
  Spartanburg, Agent  (First Reading) 
  Presenter:  Joshua Henderson, Planning Coordinator 

  

 As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 
 
 

Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a Public 
Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
C.  Ordinance to Amend the Text of Section 514, Tattoo Facilities, by including  
   “Body Piercing” Definition and Allowances. City of Spartanburg, Agent (First 
   Reading)  
         Presenter:  Joshua Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
 
D.    Text Amendment Change to the Zoning Ordinance to Amend Section III, District 
     Use Regulations, Subsection 302.5 (A)(2)(3), R-6 General Residential District,  
     Uses Permitted by Right, Removing #2) Group Homes, Rooming, Boarding and 
     Lodging Houses (excluding Hotels, Motels, and Tourist Homes), where Renting of 
     Rooms is not Subordinate to Some Other Use; and; #3) Mobile Home Parks.  City 
     of Spartanburg, Agent (First Reading)   
         Presenter:  Joshua Henderson, Planning Coordinator 

 
E.    Text Amendment Change to the Zoning Ordinance to Remove all Statements of 
      the Previous Zoning Classification of B-2.  City of Spartanburg, Agent (First  
  Reading)  
      Presenter:  Joshua Henderson, Planning Coordinator 

 
   IX.       Resolution 
 
               A.  Regarding Consent of Council of the Reappointment of the Prosecutor by the 
  City Attorney 
  Presenter:  Cathy McCabe, City Attorney 
  
    X.     City Council Updates      
 
    XI.     Adjournment 
 

* City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter 
pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel 
matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item 
considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City Council. 
The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the designated 
time and will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. 

  

 
City Council Agenda 

Page Two – September 10, 2012 



 
III.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  
 



 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street 

Monday, August 27, 2012 
 

(These minutes are subject to approval at the  
September 10, 2012 City Council meeting.) 

 
City Council met this date with the following members present: Mayor Junie White, Mayor pro 
tem Cate Ryba, Councilmembers Linda Dogan, Jerome Rice, Robert Reeder and Jan Scalisi. 
Councilmember Anderson was absent due to required military service. City Manager Ed 
Memmott and City Attorney Cathy McCabe were also in attendance. Notice of the meeting was 
posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. All 
City Council meetings are recorded for a complete transcript. 

 
I. Moment of Silence - observed 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance - recited 
 
III. Approval of Minutes of the August 13, 2012 City Council Meeting –  
  Councilmember Dogan made a motion to approve the minutes as received.     
  Councilmember Reeder seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
IV. Approval of Agenda of the August 27, 2012 City Council Meeting – 
  Mayor pro tem Ryba made a motion to approve the agenda as received.       
  Councilmember Rice seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
 V.        Public Comment – Detria Smith Jones of 283 Hydrick St., Spartanburg, SC came   
             forward to express concerns regarding code enforcement. 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 
VI.        Special Presentation 
             A.   City of Spartanburg 30 Years of Tree City USA Flag Presentation 
                      Presenter:  Dena Jacob, Regional Urban Forester, Piedmont 
 Ms. Jacob presented a plaque and a Tree City USA flag to the City celebrating 30 
 years of Tree City USA compliance. 
 
VII.      Resolution 
             A. Approving the Purchase of 18.24 Acres of Property from Mt. Zion Full Gospel 
 Baptist Church (Portion of Parcel 7016-008.00) 
                       Presenter:  Darwin Simpson, Airport Director 
 Mr. Simpson presented the item to City Council as follows: 

 1  





            “Several years ago, an airport Layout Plan was approved by the FAA for the Spartanburg   
             Downtown Airport which required the acquisition of parcels needed for the expansion of the 
  safety zone and also for the expansion of the runway.    Several parcels were purchased in 
  2009 and the City now has the opportunity to purchase 18.24 acres of vacant land from Mt. 
  Zion Full Gospel Baptist Church.   This property is adjacent to Mt. Zion Full Gospel Baptist 
  Church and is a portion of Block Map Sheet 7-16-13-008.00.   The appraised value of the 
  property is $109,000.00 which the Church has agreed to accept as just compensation. 
  Staff is requesting approval for the purchase of property located just off Wimberly 
  Drive which is a portion of Block Map Sheet 7-16-13-008.00 from Mt. Zion Full  
  Gospel Baptist Church for the agreed upon price of $109,000.00. 
  BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:   $109,000 which will be reimbursed by the FAA.” 
  Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the resolution as requested.  
  Councilmember Reeder seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
VIII.     Other Business 
  A. Approval to Purchase Mobile Computer Infrastructure and Network Upgrade
  Presenter:  Major Steve Lamb, Public Safety 
  Major Lamb presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “Over the last decade, the Public Safety Department has utilized an advanced network 
  of integrated computers assigned to individual patrol units. This system has allowed 
  officers to create reports in the field and wirelessly send them to our records division. 
  They can also query data from several internal, local and national databases. This  
  process has saved countless man hours, reduced the number of needed clerical  
  positions and established our real-time data flow system.  
  However, over the last several years our wireless infrastructure has begun to  
  deteriorate and the technology has become almost obsolete. We are currently utilizing 
  outdated cellular technology and computer modems.  We are also unable to update our 
  police records management system’s software because our infrastructure will not  
  support the necessary changes. Basically, without a complete infrastructure overhaul 
  our data network will eventually become unusable to our department.  
  The Public Safety and Information Technology Divisions have researched for over a 
  year for the best possible solution. We searched for a national company with a record 
  of producing high quality products that could meet our short and long term goals. The 
  overall plan is to install new cellular modems in 48 patrol vehicles and utilize  
  advanced software to simultaneously oversee these multiple computer systems.    
  All requested purchases fall under the U.S General Services Administration (national 
  contract) or the South Carolina State Contract. These purchases will also adhere to the 
  City’s policy and procurement guidelines.    

 
Company  Price 

Utility (GSA) $93,379 
Dell (State Contract) $13,618 

AT&T (State Contract) $44,250 
Microsoft (State Contract) $9,540 

Total $160,787 
 

 2  



  The Public Safety Department requests City Council approval to upgrade their mobile 
  computer system’s infrastructure by utilizing several procurement approved vendors.   
 
  BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:  This project will be funded through the 2009  
  Recovery Act JAG Program. (MG0135) No City of Spartanburg funds will be used for 
  the purchase of this system.  After one year, the City of Spartanburg will be  
  responsible for an annual modem maintenance fee of approximately $13,632. This will 
  include maintenance for all 48 modems at $285 for each system. After three years, the 
  City of Spartanburg will be responsible for annual software maintenance of  
  approximately $6,000 yearly.” 
  Councilmember Reeder made a motion to approve the request as presented.  
  Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
             B.   Award of Bid for Bus Shelters 
  Presenter:  Dennis Locke, Finance Director     
  Mr. Locke presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “SPARTA staff is in the process of reviewing the placement and condition of 
  the shelter structures located at bus stops throughout the city.  We are reviewing 
  all high volume bus stops to determine the highest priority needs for installation 
  and replacement of bus shelters.  We have identified some FTA grant funding 
  that will allow us to purchase a number of attractive high quality shelter units to 
  be installed later this year at the locations identified as highest priority in the 
  review process.   
  We received bids from:  
  Columbia Equipment Company (Jamaica, NY)   $4,060.00 ea 
                        Duo-Gard Industries (Canto, MI)     $4,671.00 ea 
                        Brasco International Incorporated (Madison Heights, MI)    $5,320.00 ea 
  No MWBE firms responded. 
  After review of the bids and qualifications from each vendor, we determined that  
  Columbia Equipment Co. is the responsive low bidder. We are planning to purchase 
  nine shelters.  We request Council approval accordingly. 
  BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:  The total price for this purchase will be 
  $38,732.40 to be paid by F.T.A. Grant number SC 90-X166-00. This grant has 
  an 80/20 match requirement that is included in the current year Budget.” 
  Councilmember Dogan made a motion to approve the award of bid as  
  requested. Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried  
  unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
            C.        Consideration of Redistricting   
  Presenter:  Cathy McCabe, City Attorney 
  Ms. McCabe presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “In order for the City to comply with various federal requirements, it is necessary for 
  Council to consider whether the boundaries of its single member districts require  
  adjustment based on demographic and/or population changes.  These assessments are 
  routinely done every 10 years to coincide with the federal census.  Each local  
  government having single member election districts is expected to engage in good 

 3  



  faith efforts to maintain roughly equal (by population) election districts.  There are 
  also legal protections regarding minority voters that must be respected during a  
  redistricting process.   Given the population changes for the City between 2000 and 
  2010, staff anticipates that boundary changes for the City’s six single member districts 
  will be necessary. A redistricting plan process must also:  

 
      1.    Adhere to the 1965 Voting Rights Act as amended and controlling court   
        decisions. 
 2.    Ensure that parts of districts established are contiguous. 
 3.    Respect Communities of Interest. 
      4.    Attempt to maintain constituent consistency. 
      5.    Solicit public input. 
      6.    Avoid splitting voting precincts if possible. 

   
   To assist local governments in this process, the State of South Carolina offers support 

  through the State Budget and Control Board – Office of Research and Statistics.  After 
  initial consultation with Mr. Bowers, Executive Director of the Office of Research and 
  Statistic, staff is recommending the following district plan development process.   
 
  September 10, 2012 – Briefing from Mr. Bowers.  It is expected that Mr. Bowers will 
  provide his assessment of the City current district boundaries and present a sample 
  plan of changes for Council’s initial consideration.  If Council believes the sample 
  plan presented by Mr. Bowers is acceptable, Council could vote to accept the sample 
  as its “starting point” plan.  This sample plan would then be released to the public in 
  the next few days after this meeting.     
  October 22, 2012 – Conduct a public hearing and possible first reading of an  
  Ordinance to adopt new district boundaries. Council may decide to delay its vote on 
  the plan based on comments received during the public hearing and set more time for 
  public comment and input.    
  Staff is requesting that City Council consider staff’s suggested schedule and process 
  for Council redistricting and provide  direction to staff for moving this process  
  forward.” 
  Ms. McCabe also proposed a public forum on the redistricting matter on either  
  September 27, October 2, or October 4, which would give citizens an opportunity to 
  view proposed changes, ask questions, and voice concerns over the proposed  
  redistricting. She asked that councilmembers let City Clerk McIntyre know which 
  date they preferred. She stated that Mr. Bowers would be in attendance at the public 
  forum. 
  City Council received the report as information. 
   
   IX.     City Council Updates 
              Councilmember Reeder shared that the Spartanburg County Municipal Association  
              meeting held the previous Thursday at Wade’s was very productive and informative with  
              staff from the Appalachian Council of Governments advising the group regarding current  
              legislation in Columbia and other pertinent matters. 
              Councilmember Dogan shared that she had attended her first meeting with the Arts  

 4  



              Partnership committee and that it went well. She echoed Councilmember Reeder’s  
              comments regarding the SCMA meeting. 
              Councilmember Scalisi also echoed Councilmember Reeder’s comments regarding the  
              SCMA meeting and emphasized how important it was for Councilmembers to keep up with  
              current and pending legislation in Columbia.  
              She shared that she and the Mayor had attended the regular meeting of ACOG the previous  
              Friday. She also asked that that everyone remember the people on the Gulf Coast who would  
              be affected by Hurricane Isaac. 
              Councilmember Rice stated that the grand opening of the refurbished Stewart Park would   
              be held on Saturday, September 8, 2012 at 10:00 a.m. and encouraged everyone to attend. 
              Mayor pro tem Ryba thanked the staff and BikeWorks for the signage recently placed on   
              the Duncan Park Trail. 
 
    X.      Adjournment – Councilmember Dogan made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mayor    
   pro tem Ryba seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 6 to 0, and the meeting    
   adjourned at 6:15 p.m. 
 
 
 

   Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 

 5  



VI.  
 



    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 

 
 
 
TO:   Mayor and Members of Council  
 
CC:   Ed Memmott, City Manager 
   Chris Story, Assistant City Manager    
 
FROM:  Cathy McCabe, City Attorney 
      
SUBJECT:  Redistricting Presentation 
 
DATE:  September 6, 2012 
   
 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 
At the Council Meeting on September 10, 2012, Bobby Bowers with the Office of Research and Statistics, 
South Carolina State Budget and Control Board, will make a presentation to City Council about 
redistricting. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  
None.  For information only. 
 
 
 
BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:    
Not applicable. 
 



 

VII. A 

  
 



     REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager    
  
FROM:   Joshua T. Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
      
SUBJECT:  Rezoning of a Property Located at 1585 East Main Street, Bill Akkary & His Agent,  

Craig Jacobs of Spencer Hines Properties, on Behalf of National Bank of SC, Owner 
 
DATE: September 10, 2012 
 
SUMMARY:  On August 16, 2012, the Planning Commission reviewed a rezoning request submitted by 
Bill Akkary and his agent, Craig Jacobs of Spencer Hines Properties, on behalf of National Bank of SC, 
Owner, to rezone parcel 7-13-01-032.00 from LOD (Limited Office District) to B-1 (Neighborhood 
Shopping District).  The property is located at 1585 East Main Street.  After review of the application, staff 
recommended approval of the proposed zone change given the presence of nearby B-1 properties and the 
intended nature of both the current and proposed zoning districts.  The proposed use of the property is to be 
a restaurant which fits with the definition of the B-1 District.  Staff believed that the heavily wooded nature 
of the area and the required new masonry wall with new landscaped buffer, and the existing separation 
distances should minimize potential adverse impact on adjacent residents. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposal on August 16, 2012.  After consideration 
of the staff report, public comments, and the criteria set forth in the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance 
and 2004 City Comprehensive Plan, the Planning Commission voted to recommend against the zone 
change.  The Commission was concerned for future use, other than that of a restaurant, that could be 
allowed under the zoning classification of B-1 and the effects of those possible uses on the surrounding 
commercial, office, and more importantly, the residentially zoned properties. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: The request was not endorsed by the Planning 
Commission on August 16, 2012.  The applicant subsequently exercised his right to a new (“de novo”) 
public hearing before the City Council. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff’s recommendation concerning this application is explained in 
detail in the attached staff report to the Planning Commission.   
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Minutes from the Planning Commission Meeting, and Staff Report 
with attachments are included.   
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  N/A 
 





















































































 
 

VIII. A  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 

TO:   Ed Memmott, City Manager     
 
FROM:  Wesley Corrothers, Director of Neighborhood Services  
      
SUBJECT:  Sale of Woodruff lots to Habitat for Humanity  
 
DATE:  August 1, 2012 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
In November of 2011, City Council approved a resolution accepting the receipt of the assets, both cash and 
real property, from the now dissolved Spartanburg Residential Development Corp (SRDC).  The City 
agreed to use those assets to promote affordable housing in Spartanburg.  Part of those assets included two 
(2) vacant lots in a subdivision located in Woodruff.  The City has received a proposal from the Lower 
Spartanburg County Habitat for Humanity organization to buy each parcel for $2,000.   
 
The City’s only intent was to sell them to a developer that would keep them affordable to low-and-
moderate income families.  The City Manager of Woodruff has no objections with this transaction.  
Therefore, staff is recommending the sale of these two vacant lots, in the Timberwood Acres subdivision, 
for $4,000 to Habitat for Humanity. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   
 
Approval of an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to execute a deed conveying the two (2) properties 
listed below to the Lower Spartanburg County Habitat for Humanity for a total of $4,000. 
 
4-41-00-200.00  205 Old Timber Road 
4-41-00-207.00  198 Old Timber Road 
 
 
BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:    
  
N/A 



198

20
5

VA
R

N
E

R
 R

D

O
LD

 T
IM

B
E

R
 R

D

TIMBERWOOD DR

CROSS ANCHOR RD

Spartanburg Residential Development
Lots 190 and 205 Old Timber Rd



 AN ORDINANCE 
 
 
                TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A DEED 

CONVEYING TWO VACANT LOTS IN THE TIMBERWOOD 
ACRES SUBDIVISION TO THE LOWER SPARTANBURG COUNTY 
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY 

 
                             
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the City of Spartanburg, 
South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
 Section 1:  The City Manager is authorized to execute a deed conveying two vacant lots 
located in Timberwood Acres Subdivision, Woodruff, South Carolina to the Lower Spartanburg 
County Habitat for Humanity, for the sum of Four Thousand and No/100 ($4,000.00) Dollars; said 
properties are known as 205 Old Timber Road, Block Map Sheet 4-41-00-200.00 and 198 Old 
Timber Road, Block Map Sheet 4-41-00-207.00. 
 
 Section 2.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of enactment. 
 
 DONE AND RATIFIED this _____ day of September 2012. 
        
 
     __________________________________ 
      MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 
       /       /            1st Reading 
 
___/___/____       2nd Reading 
 

 
 



 

VIII. B  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



     REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager    
  
FROM:   Joshua T. Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
      
SUBJECT:  Ordinance to Amend the Text of Section 512, Regulations for Video Casinos and  

Poker Machines by Removing Current Subsections, and Amending Entire Section to 
include the Allowances and Requirements for Defining “Internet Café’s”, 
“Sweepstakes Promotions” and/or “Internet Sales”, and Other Business Using 
Electronic Gaming and Simulated Gambling Devices.  City of Spartanburg. 

 
DATE: September 10, 2012 
 
SUMMARY:  Section 512 of the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance is inconsistent with state laws 
since the state of South Carolina has banned video casinos and video poker machines.  There are new 
devices on the market that use the internet in “games of chance” which do not fall under the two previously 
mentioned and removed categories.  Earlier this year, City Council placed a moratorium on these devices 
and related “internet cafe” establishments.   
 
Staff recommends the amendment as laid out in Attachment A to include definitions, locations, parking 
requirements, etc. for these proposed uses. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: The request was unanimously endorsed by the 
Planning Commission on August 16, 2012.  Staff’s recommendation concerning this application is 
explained in detail in the attached staff report to the Planning Commission. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Minutes from the Planning Commission Meeting, and Staff Report 
with attachments are included.  In addition, enclosed is a proposed Ordinance in the event that Council 
approves the text amendment request. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Staff and the Planning Commission recommend that the City Council approve the text amendment request. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  
 
N/A 
 



AN ORDINANCE 
 
TO AMEND THE TEXT OF SECTION 512, REGULATIONS FOR VIDEO CASINOS 
AND POKER MACHINES BY REMOVING CURRENT SUBSECTIONS, AND 
AMENDING THE ENTIRE SECTION TO INCLUDE THE ALLOWANCES AND 
REQUIREMENTS FOR DEFINING “INTERNET CAFÉS”, “SWEEPSTAKES 
PROMOTIONS”, AND/OR “INTERNET SALES”, AND OTHER BUSINESS USING 
ELECTRONIC GAMING AND SIMULATED GAMBLING DEVICES, OF THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA; 
AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg now finds that it is in the public interest to amend 
Section 512, Regulations for Video Casinos and Poker Machines by removing current 
subsections, and amending entire section to include the allowances and requirements for defining 
“Internet Cafés”, “Sweepstakes Promotions” and/or “Internet Sales”, and other business using 
electronic gaming and simulated gambling devices; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this text amendment change would be compatible with surrounding land 
uses and neighborhood character, would not be detrimental to the public health, safety and 
welfare, and further, would be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 16, 2012, at 
which time a presentation was made by staff and an opportunity was given for the public to 
comment on the text amendment change; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after consideration of the requirements set forth 
in Section 605 of the Zoning Ordinance, subsequently voted at that meeting to recommend to 
City Council that the proposed text amendment be approved as submitted by staff. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the 
City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
 Section 1. Amendment.  That the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance, be, and the 
same hereby amended as follows in Attachment A. 
 
 Section 2. Severability.  If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is 
for any reason invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provisions, and such holding shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the 
City Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina. 



 
 DONE AND RATIFIED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2012. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Junie L. White, Mayor  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Cathy H. McCabe, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____ / ____ / ____ (First Reading) 
 
____ / ____ / ____ (Second Reading) 
 





























 
 

VIII. C  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

  
 



     REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager    
  
FROM:   Joshua T. Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
      
SUBJECT:  Ordinance to Amend the Text of Section 514, Tattoo Facilities, by including “Body  

Piercing” Definition and Allowances.  City of Spartanburg. 
 
DATE: September 10, 2012 
 
SUMMARY:  In April, 2005, City Council voted to amend the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance and 
include a new section regulating the placement and use of tattoo parlors within the City Limits.  It was after 
an inquiry for a body piercing facility that Staff began to realize that the Zoning Ordinance did not regulate 
these uses within that section, the use table, parking requirements, or any other section of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  Per the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control (SCDHEC), Health 
Regulations, the uses of a tattoo parlor and body piercing facility are similar in use due to the health risks 
when releasing blood-borne pathogens into the air.  Since they are similar uses, Staff is only amending the 
section to include the definition of a body piercing facility and to include the term “body piercing” or 
“body piercing facility” throughout the section in conjunction with tattoo parlor. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: The request was unanimously endorsed by the 
Planning Commission on August 16, 2012.  Staff’s recommendation concerning this application is 
explained in detail in the attached staff report to the Planning Commission. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Minutes from the Planning Commission Meeting, and Staff Report 
with attachments are included.  In addition, enclosed is a proposed Ordinance in the event that Council 
approves the text amendment request. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Staff and the Planning Commission recommend that the City Council approve 
the text amendment request. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  
 
N/A 



AN ORDINANCE 
 
TO AMEND THE TEXT OF SECTION 514, TATTOO FACILITIES, BY INCLUDING 
“BODY PIERCING” DEFINITION AND ALLOWANCES, OF THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA; AND 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg now finds that it is in the public interest to amend 
Section 514, Tattoo Facilities, by including “Body Piercing” definition and allowances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this text amendment change would be compatible with surrounding land 
uses and neighborhood character, would not be detrimental to the public health, safety and 
welfare, and further, would be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 16, 2012, at 
which time a presentation was made by staff and an opportunity was given for the public to 
comment on the text amendment change; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after consideration of the requirements set forth 
in Section 605 of the Zoning Ordinance, subsequently voted at that meeting to recommend to 
City Council that the proposed text amendment be approved as submitted by staff. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the 
City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
 Section 1. Amendment.  That the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance, be, and the 
same hereby amended as follows in Attachment A. 
 
 Section 2. Severability.  If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is 
for any reason invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provisions, and such holding shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the 
City Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina. 



 
 DONE AND RATIFIED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2012. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Junie L. White, Mayor  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Cathy H. McCabe, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____ / ____ / ____ (First Reading) 
 
____ / ____ / ____ (Second Reading) 
 























 
  
 

VIII. D  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

  
 



     REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager    
  
FROM:   Joshua T. Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
      
SUBJECT:  Ordinance to Amend the Text of Section III, District Use Regulations, Subsection 302.5 

(A) (2) & (3), R-6 General Residential District, Uses Permitted by Right, Removing #2) 
– Group Homes, Rooming, Boarding and Lodging Houses (excluding hotels, motels, 
and tourist homes), Where Renting of Rooms is not Subordinate to Some Other Use, 
and; #3) – Mobile Home Parks.  Also to Remove the R-6 Statement in Section 508.12 
under the Mobile Home Park Location Section.  City of Spartanburg. 

 
DATE: September 10, 2012 
 
SUMMARY:  Under Section 302 Use Regulations for Residential Districts in the City of Spartanburg 
Zoning Ordinance for R-6 – General Residential District, the allowance for group homes, mobile home 
parks, and similar uses has been permitted for some time.  Upon the request by city residents, Staff has 
reviewed these allowances with regards to the interaction between these uses and surrounding single family 
and multifamily uses.  There are no other residential zones within the City of Spartanburg that allow for 
these types of facilities either permitted by right or permitted by Special Exception.  The proposed text 
amendment would be to remove the following sections that are currently allowed according to section 
302.5 of the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance: 
 

1. Group homes, rooming, boarding and lodging houses (excluding hotels, motels, and tourist homes), 
where the renting of rooms is not subordinate to some other use; 

2. Mobile Home Parks 
 
The proposed text amendment would also be to remove the statement under Section 508.12 Mobile Homes 
and Mobile Commercial Buildings – Locations referencing the allowed location of R-6. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: The request was unanimously endorsed by the 
Planning Commission on August 16, 2012.  Staff’s recommendation concerning this application is 
explained in detail in the attached staff report to the Planning Commission. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Minutes from the Planning Commission Meeting, and Staff Report 
with attachments are included.  In addition, enclosed is a proposed Ordinance in the event that Council 
approves the text amendment request. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Staff and the Planning Commission recommend that the City Council approve 
the text amendment request. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA: N/A 
 



AN ORDINANCE 
 
TO AMEND THE TEXT OF SECTION III, DISTRICT USE REGULATIONS, 
SUBSECTION 302.5 (A) (2) & (3), R-6 GENERAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, USES 
PERMITTED BY RIGHT, REMOVING #2) GROUP HOMES, ROOMING, BOARDING 
AND LODGING HOUSES (EXCLUDING HOTELS, MOTELS, AND TOURIST 
HOMES), WHERE RENTING OF ROOMS IS NOT SUBORDINATE TO SOME OTHER 
USE; AND, #3) MOBILE HOME PARKS;  AND REMOVING THE R-6 STATEMENT IN 
SECTION 508.12 UNDER MOBILE HOME PARK LOCATION SECTION, OF THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA; 
AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg now finds that it is in the public interest to amend 
Section III, District Use Regulations, Subsection 302.5 (A) (2) & (3), R-6 General Residential 
District, Uses Permitted by Right, removing #2) group homes, rooming, boarding and lodging 
houses (excluding hotels, motels, and tourist homes), where renting of rooms is not subordinate 
to some other use; and; #3) mobile home parks, and removing the R-6 Statement in Section 
508.12 under Mobile Home Park Location Section; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this text amendment change would be compatible with surrounding land 
uses and neighborhood character, would not be detrimental to the public health, safety and 
welfare, and further, would be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 16, 2012, at 
which time a presentation was made by staff and an opportunity was given for the public to 
comment on the text amendment change; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after consideration of the requirements set forth 
in Section 605 of the Zoning Ordinance, subsequently voted at that meeting to recommend to 
City Council that the proposed text amendment be approved as submitted by staff. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the 
City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
 Section 1. Amendment.  That the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance, be, and the 
same hereby amended as follows in Attachment A. 
 
 Section 2. Severability.  If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is 
for any reason invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provisions, and such holding shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 3. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the 
City Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina. 
 
 DONE AND RATIFIED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2012. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Junie L. White, Mayor  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Cathy H. McCabe, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____ / ____ / ____ (First Reading) 
 
____ / ____ / ____ (Second Reading) 
 
 
 













 
 
 

VIII. E  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  
 



     REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager    
  
FROM:   Joshua T. Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
      
SUBJECT:  Ordinance to Amend the Text of the Entire City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance to 

Remove All Statements of the Previous Zoning Classification of B-2 and Replace with 
the Appropriate DT-4, DT-5, or DT-6.  City of Spartanburg. 

 
DATE: September 10, 2012 
 
SUMMARY:  On February 28, 2011, City Council voted to adopt the new Downtown Urban Code.  It 
became effective on July1, 2011, effectively replacing the zoning requirements for the downtown area 
which included all properties which had previously been zoned B-2.  However, the necessary housekeeping 
text amendment removing the former B-2/Central Business District classification from the Zoning 
Ordinance was not implemented at that time.  Staff has since prepared this Zoning Ordinance strike-
through amendment removing all sections mentioning the B-2 zoning classification.   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: The request was unanimously endorsed by the 
Planning Commission on August 16, 2012.  Staff’s recommendation concerning this application is 
explained in detail in the attached staff report to the Planning Commission. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: Minutes from the Planning Commission Meeting, and Staff Report 
with attachments and Zoning Ordinance Strike-Thru are included.  In addition, enclosed is a proposed 
Ordinance in the event that Council approves the text amendment request. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Staff and the Planning Commission recommend that the City Council approve 
the text amendment request. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA: N/A 
 



AN ORDINANCE 
 
 
 
TO AMEND THE TEXT TO REMOVE ALL STATEMENTS OF THE PREVIOUS 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF B-2, OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
OF SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg now finds that it is in the public interest to amend 
the text to remove all statements of the previous zoning classification of B-2, Section 514, Tattoo 
Facilities, by including “Body Piercing” definition and allowances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this text amendment change would be compatible with surrounding land 
uses and neighborhood character, would not be detrimental to the public health, safety and 
welfare, and further, would be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on August 16, 2012, at 
which time a presentation was made by staff and an opportunity was given for the public to 
comment on the text amendment change; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after consideration of the requirements set forth 
in Section 605 of the Zoning Ordinance, subsequently voted at that meeting to recommend to 
City Council that the proposed text amendment be approved as submitted by staff. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the 
City of Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
 Section 1. Amendment.  That the City of Spartanburg Zoning Ordinance, be, and the 
same hereby amended as follows in Attachment A. 
 
 Section 2. Severability.  If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is 
for any reason invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provisions, and such holding shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Section 3. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the 
City Council of the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina. 
 
 DONE AND RATIFIED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2012. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Junie L. White, Mayor  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Cathy H. McCabe, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____ / ____ / ____ (First Reading) 
 
____ / ____ / ____ (Second Reading) 
 
 
 
 



STRIKE - THROUGH

CITY OF SPARTANBURG
SOUTH CAROLINA

ZONING ORDINANCE

APRIL 2011Page 1



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike‐Through Document ]  
All (B‐2) to be replaced with DT4 DT5 DT6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

  Zoning StrikeThrough Document 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE & INTENT 
 
The purpose of this document is to outline all descriptions to be changed from the Zoning Ordinance for 
the City of Spartanburg, SC. The desired result is for these changes to correlate with the new downtown 
code, which is to be inserted as Section 515 in the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
DESCRIPTIONS   CHANGES 
 
B-2     These districts are to be replaced with D-T4  DT-5  DT-6 
 
Central Business District  These descriptions are to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code 

Page 2



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

Table Of Contents 
 
 
SECTION NUMBER PAGE 
 
SECTION I.   ADOPTION AND INTERPRETATION ............................................................... 1 

 
δ  101  Zoning Ordinance Published Separately................................................................ 1 
δ  102  Authority ................................................................................................................... 1 
δ  103  Title ............................................................................................................................ 1 
δ  104  Jurisdiction................................................................................................................ 1 
δ  105  Purpose ...................................................................................................................... 1 
δ  106  Interpretation............................................................................................................ 1 
δ  107  Scope .......................................................................................................................... 2 
δ  108  Definitions ................................................................................................................. 2 

 
SECTION II.   ZONING DISTRICTS AND OFFICIAL ZONING MAP .................................. 13 

 
δ  201  Zoning Districts ....................................................................................................... 13 

R-15  Single Family Residential District .............................................................. 13 
R-12  General Residential District ....................................................................... 13 
R-8 SFD  Single Family District ........................................................................... 14 
R-8  General Residential District ......................................................................... 14 
R-6  General Residential District ......................................................................... 14 
R-6  Live/Work District ......................................................................................... 14 
GID General Institutional District ....................................................................... 15 
LOD  Limited Office District ................................................................................ 15 
LC  Limited Commercial District ......................................................................... 15 
B-1  Neighborhood Shopping District .................................................................. 15 
B-2  Central Business District ............................................................................... 15 
B-3  General Retail District .................................................................................. 16 
B-4  Heavy Commercial District ............................................................................. 16 
I-1  Light Industrial District ................................................................................. 16 
I-2  Heavy Industrial District ................................................................................ 16 

δ  202  Interpretation Of The Zoning Map ....................................................................... 16 
δ  203  District Boundaries Established ............................................................................. 16 
δ  204  Flood Hazard Maps .................................................................................................. 16 
δ  205  Interpretation Of District Boundaries.................................................................... 17 
δ  206  Changes To District Boundaries ............................................................................ 17 
δ  207  Lot Divided By District Boundaries........................................................................ 18 
δ  208  Zoning Of Annexed Property .................................................................................. 18 

 
SECTION III.  DISTRICT USE REGULATIONS ...................................................................... 19 
 

δ  301  District Use Classifications ..................................................................................... 19 
δ  302  Use Regulations For Residential District . ............................................................. 19 

302.1 R-15 Single Family Residential Districts  .................................................. 19 
A.  Uses Permitted By Right ....................................................................... 19 
B.  Uses Permitted By Special Exception ................................................... 20 

 
 
 

Page 3

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6Downtown Urban Code

russell
Typewritten Text

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 
 

Section 201-208:  Zoning Districts and Official Zoning Map (Page 13) 
 

SECTION II 
ZONING DISTRICTS AND OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 

 
δ  201. ZONING DISTRICTS (*) 
 

The following districts hereby created and designated by the accompanying symbols: 
 

R-15   Single Family Residential District 
R-12   General Residential District 
R-8 SFD  Single Family District 
R-8   General Residential District 
R-6   General Residential District 
R-6 Live Work  Live/Work District (***) 
GID   General Institutional District (**) 
LOD   Limited Office District (**) 
LC   Limited Commercial District 
B-1   Neighborhood Shopping Center 
B-2   Central Business District 
B-3   General Business District 
B-4   Heavy Commercial District 
I-1   Light Industrial District 
I-2   Heavy Industrial District 

 
The boundaries of these districts are hereby established as shown on the official Zoning Map of 
Spartanburg, South Carolina. 
 
DISTRICTS    CHARACTERISTICS 
 
R-15 Districts    These districts exist for the protection of areas, most of 
(Single Family Residential)  them large in size, that have been and are being 

developed predominantly for low-density single family 
dwellings and low-density planned unit developments.  
Accordingly, the use of land and buildings within such areas is 
limited to single family detached dwellings, mixed dwellings 
permitted in PDDs and to such nonresidential uses as generally 
support and harmonize with these low-density residential district.  
Within these areas, home occupations and the maintenance of 
professional offices within homes are not characteristic and are 
prohibited except as permitted in planned development districts. 

 
R-12 Districts These districts exist for the protection of areas, most of 
(General Residential District) them large in size, that have been and are being developed 

predominantly for low-density single family dwellings but in 
which two family and multi-family  

* (Amended by Council 12/12/94)  ** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01 
*** (Further Amended by Council 1/24/05) 

 
 
 

Page 4

russell
Typewritten Text

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6Downtown Urban Code

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
Section 201-208:  Zoning Districts and Official Zoning Map (Page 15) 

 
 
GID Districts (*) These districts are established solely for institutions.  It 
(General Institutional District) is intended that this district will develop in a manner that will 

insure compatibility with residential neighborhoods. 
 
LOD Districts (*) These districts are established to provide for office uses, 
(Limited Office District)  including offices which have contact with the general public, but 

which do not conduct sales of merchandise on the premises.  It is 
intended that this district will develop that will insure 
compatibility with residential districts. 

 
LC District (*) These districts are established to provide for the 
(Limited Commercial)   Limited Commercial District transitional areas from 

residential to office and limited commercial retail services which 
do not generate large volumes of traffic, noise or other harmful 
effects and which are compatible with nearby residential uses.  
Moreover, these districts provide for development along major 
thoroughfares, especially between more intensely developed and 
higher traffic generating areas and residential areas, in order to 
permit a reasonable use of land along such thoroughfares without 
the inherent ill effects of commercial strip development.  These 
districts also encourage conservation and preservation of 
structurally sound residences in these neighborhoods.  No 
exterior storage is permitted in this Zone. 

 
B-1 Districts These districts are intended primarily to serve the needs 
(Neighborhood Shopping) of the surrounding residential neighborhood, providing goods, 

and services that are day-to-day needs, generally classed by 
merchants as “convenience good and services”.  Businesses 
which might tend to be a nuisance to the immediately 
surrounding residential developments are excluded, even though 
the goods or services offered might be in the convenience 
category or classification. 

 
B-2 District This district is the central shopping area of the City. 
(Central Business) Here are concentrated activities which have primarily a city-wide 

and regional function:  large stores offering comparison 
shopper’s goods, specialty stores, business services, banks and 
other financial institutions, offices, theaters, hotels, and 
government building.  The use of land in intensive and this 
intensity of use is one of the main determinants of the vitality of 
the Central Business District.  It is the purpose of these 
regulations to encourage such intensity of use and to exclude 
activities which have a negative effect upon the proper functions 
of the downtown area. 

 
* (Further Amended by Council 12/12/94) ** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 
B-3 Districts These districts serve several functions.  They provide 

 
 
 

Page 5

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6Downtown Urban Code

russell
Text Box
Downtown Urban Code

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 

Section 201-208:  Zoning Districts and Official Zoning Map (Page 16) 
  
(General Business) central concentrations of goods and services for more than one 

neighborhood.  They provide comparison shopper’s goods, 
convenience goods and services, specialty goods, amusements 
and numerous services for less than a city-wide market.  They 
also provide locations for small businessmen with a city-wide 
market who cannot operate in the downtown areas.  The 
predominant purpose of all these functions is retail trade. 

 
 
B-4 Districts    These districts furnish goods and services which are 
(Heavy Commercial) mainly used in support of retail trade for the City and the region.  

The principal activities located here are wholesaling, 
warehousing, transportation, heavy business services, 
distribution, and some incidental processing.  Such functions are 
generally located in such a position that they can support the 
Central Business District and at the same time concentrate their 
heavy traffic requirements near the main arteries for movement 
of goods and services. 

 
I-1 Districts    These districts are intended for industrial uses, which are 
(Light Industrial) not offensive to nearby commercial or residential uses, and for 

business uses which generally support and are integrated with 
these industrial uses.  Further development of residences is 
prohibited from these districts to prevent residences from being 
established under strongly adverse conditions and to conserve 
the supply of industrial land. 

 
I-2 Districts These districts are for heavy industrial activities which 
(Heavy Industrial) may be offensive, or incompatible, if located near commercial or 

residential uses and for limited business uses which support, or 
are compatible with, these heavy industrial activities.  Further 
development of residences is prohibited from these districts to 
prevent residences from being established under strongly adverse 
conditions and to conserve the supply of industrial land. 

 
δ  202. INTERPRETATION OF THE ZONING MAP. 
 
The Zoning Administrator shall interpret the Zoning Map according to the following guide: 

 
A. Where such district boundaries are indicated as approximately following center lines of 

streets and alleys, lot lines, stream center lines, property lines or corporate limit lines, such 
lines shall be considered to be such boundaries. 

 
B. In unsubdivided  property or where a district boundary divides a lot, or where the dimension 

is not shown on the official Zoning Map, the Zoning Administrator shall determine the 
location of the zoning line by use of the appropriate scale. 

 
 
 
 

Page 6

russell
Text Box
Downtown Urban Code

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (page 22) 

 
1. Any use permitted by special exception in the R-8 Single Family District. 

 
 

302.5 R-6 General Residential District. 
In this district a building or land may be used only for the following purposes: 
A. Uses Permitted by Right: 

1. Any use permitted by right in the R-8 General Residential District. 
2. Group homes, rooming, boarding and lodging houses (excluding hotels, motels, 

and tourist homes), where renting of rooms is not subordinate to some other use. 
3. Mobile Home Parks (See Section V, δ 508). 

 
B. Uses Permitted by Special Exception. 

All uses permitted by special exception in the R-8 General Residential District may 
be permitted in the R-6 General Residential District in accordance with the 
provisions of Section VI, δ 603.5 of this Ordinance. 

 
302.55 R-6 Live/Work District. (*) 

1. Intent: The intent of this District is to provide for employment 
opportunities in conjunction with a dwelling which are more 
extensive than home occupations under Section 302.6, and which 
create a mixed use neighborhood predominately residential in 
character. Live/work neighborhoods are also designed to provide a 
transition between more intensive office and commercial areas and 
low density residential neighborhoods. 

2. Definition: Live/Work is a place designed to be used by the occupant 
as both a dwelling place and a place of work. 

3. Application: This District applies to the following: 
a. All properties currently zoned LOD Limited Office District (**) 

and B-2 Central Business District, where in addition to other 
uses permitted in LOD and B-2, live/work uses as defined by 
this Section are permitted as conditional uses subject to a finding 
by the Planning Commission that they meet the criteria in 
302.55.3.b. below; 

b. Properties within the City may be rezoned to the R-6 Live/Work 
District subject to a finding by the Planning Commission and 
City Council that such uses meet the following criteria: 
I. Are of an appropriate scale for the transitional nature of the 

property; 
II. Are compatible with the character of the area; 
III. Do not generate excessive evening activity; 
IV. Do not generate excessive traffic, noise or odor; 
V. Do not negatively impact adjoining or abutting residential 

properties. 
 
 
 
* (Amended by Council 1/24/05)   **(Further Amended by Council 7/27/09 

 
 
 
 

Page 7

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6Downtown Urban Code

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 

Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (page 26) 
  
kept on file and may be used as a basis for periodic inspection of the use. Approval of the Home 
Occupation Affidavit by the Zoning Administrator shall constitute the granting of a zoning permit for the 
home occupation use, subject to the conditions on the Affidavit. 

 
δ  303 USE REGULATIONS FOR BUSINESS, OFFICE, INSTITUTIONAL, AND INDUSTRIAL 

DISTRICTS. 
 

The following table describes the uses permitted in each Commercial, Office, Institutional/Public 
and Quasi-Public, Residential, and Industrial categories. 
In any case where a use is not specifically referred to by the following table, its status under this 

Section shall be determined by the Zoning Administrator, by reference to the most clearly 
analogous use or uses has been so determined by the Zoning Administrator, such determination 
shall thereafter have general application to all uses of the same type. 
Accessory uses customarily incidental to uses in the table are permitted in connection with such 

uses. Such accessory uses may include residences of caretakers and other such persons who must 
live in the area for the convenience of business and industry, and their dependents. A single family 
dwelling may be permitted as an accessory use to a principal commercial use provided the single 
family dwelling is located within the same building as the principal commercial use. Video poker 
machines, up to a maximum of four (4) machines per establishment may be permitted as an 
accessory use to any use permitted in Zones B-1, B-2, B-3, or B-4 (See Section 512 for locational 
standards for the same). The R-6 Live/Work District shall apply to all properties zoned LOD 
Limited Office District subject to meeting the requirements of Section 302.55 R-6 Live/Work 
District above. (*)(**) 
303.1 Interpretation of Table of Permitted Uses. 

P: Permitted as Right 
SE: Permitted only by special exception under Section VI, δ 603.5 of this 
Ordinance 
CU: Conditional Use 
Blank Space: Not Permitted 

 
303.2 Conditional Use Determination in a Limited Commercial District: (***) 

A. Conditional Use Determination in a Limited Commercial District 
In order to meet the intent of the Limited Commercial District, land uses 
specifically identified in the table of permitted uses shall be permitted on a 
conditional basis, subject to a finding by the City Planning Commission that such 
uses: 
a) Are of an appropriate scale for the transitional nature of the property; 
b) Are compatible with the character of the area; 
c) Do not generate excessive evening activity; 
d) Do not generate excessive traffic, noise, or odor; 

 
* (Amended by Council 9/13/99)   ** (Further Amended by Council 1/24/05) 
*** (Amended by Council 7/25/05) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (page 28) 
 
303.6 TABLE OF PERMITTED USES (****)(*****) 
 

A. COMMERCIAL USES GID LOD LC B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 I-1 I-2 
1. Airport        SE SE 
2. Amusement Center, (inside) excluding video 

poker and video casinos 
   P P  P P P 

3. Amusement Park, Amusement Arcade, Kiddy 
Land, and Go-Carts (See also Fair, Carnival, 
Rodeo) 

     P P P P 

4. Animal Breeding and Sales, with no animals 
to be located within 500 feet of any 
residentially zoned property or fifty (50) feet 
from any property line  

       P P 

5. Animal Kennel - a fully enclosed building 
with soundproofed exterior walls in 
accordance with the Building Code for the 
temporary lodging and boarding of domestic 
house pets. Outdoor kennels and cages are 
permitted. Medical treatment, clipping, and 
grooming are permitted, as is retail sale of pet 
products and accessories (see Veterinary 
Clinic and Veterinary Hospital in Table B, 40 
and 41 below) 

     P P P P 

6. Antique Store   P P P P P P P 
7. Automatic Teller Machine (freestanding)  P P P P P P P P 
8. Auction House       P P P 
9. Auto, Boat, and Farm Equipment Sales     P P P P P 
10. Auto, Body Shop       P P P 
11. Auto, Car Wash (Automatic) – No automatic 

car wash shall abut residentially zoned land 
and shall be at least 100 feet from any 
residential zone measured from property line 
to property line (See Section 108 for full 
definition)(**)(***) 

   P  P P P P 

12. Auto, Car Wash (Other than Automatic Car 
Wash as defined above) (∗)(***) 

     P P P P 

13. Auto, Gas Station – Full or Self-Service    P P P P P P 
14. Auto, Oil Change Center    P P P P P P 
15. Auto, Parts Store    P P P P P P 
16. Auto, Racing         SE 

                                                             
∗ (Further Amended by Council 4/8/86)   *** (Further Amended by Council 6/11/01) 
** (Amended by Council 7/10/00)       **** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 
         *****(Further Amended by Council 6/22/09) 
   
  
 

Page 9

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (Page 29) 
 
 

A. COMMERCIAL USES (CONTINUED) GID LOD LC B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 I-1 I-2 
17. Auto, Rental – rental of cars, trucks, and 

trailers with inventory is limited as follows: 
(1) no more than ten car can be parked on the 
property at one time; (2) no more than five 
trucks can be parked on the property at one 
time. No truck shall have more than two axles 
nor have a gross vehicle weight exceeding 
32,000 lb.; (3) only trailers utilized for 
transporting a single car can be located on the 
property and no more than five trailers at one 
time 

   P      

18. Auto, Rental     P P P P P 
19. Auto Repair (Heavy) – including but not 

limited to auto body/painting, and engine 
transmission/overhauls, and/or overnight 
storage of vehicles (**) 

     P P P P 

20. Auto Repair (Light) – including the purchase, 
service or replacement of such items such as: 
brakes, mufflers, tires, tune-ups, oil changes, 
air-conditioning systems, and/or small auto 
parts. The servicing of a vehicle is usually 
completed in one business day and has no 
outdoor storage (**) 

   P P P P P P 

21. Bank, Credit Union, Savings & Loan 
Association, Credit Bureau, Credit 
Counseling, Stock Broker, Finance Company, 
and other Financial Services (includes drive-
in’s) 

 P P P P P P P P 

22. Bar or Tavern (See also Dance Hall or Dance 
Club) 

   P P P P P P 

23. Beauty or Barber Shop  P P P P P P P P 
24. Boat and Farm Equipment Repair and 

Storage 
      P P P 

25. Bingo Parlor    P P P P P P 
26. Bookstore (see Section 303.2) (***)  CU CU P P P P P P 
27. Bus Passenger Station (intercity)     P P P P P 
28. Bus Shelters P P P P P P P P P 
29. Bus Terminal and Transfer Facility     P P P P P 
30. Carpet Store    P P P P P P 
31. Caterer    P P P P P P 
32. Cellular Telephone Sales (see * below)* (also 

see Section 303.2) (***) 
 CU CU P P P P P P 

33. Clothing, sale or rental   CU P P P P P P 
34. Clothing Storage Establishment   CU P P P P P P 

                                                             
* (Amended by City Council 2/8/99)   *** (Amended by Council 7/25/05) 
** (Amended by City Council 12/11/00) 

Page 10

russell
Typewritten Text

russell
Typewritten Text

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (Page 30) 
 
 

A. COMMERCIAL USES (CONTINUED) GID LOD LC B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 I-1 I-2 
35. Convenience Store    P P P P P P 
36. Convenience Store With Gas Pump(s)    P P P P P P 
37. Copy, Blueprint, Fax, Engraving, and/or Mail 

Box Center (commercial) (see Section 303.2) 
(***) 

 CU CU P P P P P P 

38. Courier/Messenger Service  P  P P P P P P 
39. Dance Hall or Dance Club    P P P P P P 
40. Delicatessen, Coffee Shop, and Food 

Specialty Store (**)(see Section 303.2)(***) 
 CU CU P P P P P P 

41. Dry Cleaner    P P P P P P 
42. Drug Store   CU P P P P P P 
43. Exterminator and Outdoor Building Cleaners       P P P 
44. Fair, Carnival, Rodeo, etc.     P  P P P 
45. Farmers Market     P  P P P 
46. Flea Market and Open Air Retail Sales      P P P P 
47. Furniture and Piano Store (**)   CU P P P P P P 
48. Gift Shop/Jewelry Store - (*)(see Section 

303.2) (***) 
 CU CU P P P P P P 

49. Greenhouse, Nursery, or Farm and Garden 
Supply 

   P P P P P P 

50. Grocery Store or Retail Bakery    P P P P P P 
51. Hardware Store   CU P P P P P P 
52. Health Club (commercial)    P P P P P P 
53. Heliport     P P P P P 
54. Hotel/Motel    P P P P P  
55. Indoor Racquet Courts (See also Tennis 

Club) 
   P P P P P P 

56. Insurance Company or Agency  P P P P P P P P 
57. Janitorial Service (indoor storage only)    P P P P P P 
58. Laboratory, medical or dental  P  P P P P P P 
59. Laundry Pick Up Station  P  P P P P P P 
60. Laundromat    P P P P P P 
61. Liquor Store    P P P P P P 
62. Locksmith    P P P P P P 
63. Machinery Sales    P P P P P P 
64. Manufactured and Modular Homes, and RVs, 

sale or rental 
      P P P 

65. Miniature Golf and Batting Cages    P P P P P P 
66. Mini-warehouses – Self Storage Facility    SE P P P P P 
67. Monument Sales, with incidental processing 

to order but excluding the shaping of stones 
and similar processes 

     P P P P 

68. Motorcycle Service and Sales    P P P P P P 
69. Movie Theater, indoor    P P P P P P 
70. Movie Theater, outdoor      P P P P 
71. Office Equipment and Supply (see Section 

303.2) (***) 
 CU CU P P P P P P 

 
 
 

                                                             
* (Amended by City Council 2/14/00)  ** (Amended by City Council 5/24/04) 
*** (Amended by City Council 7/25/05) 

Page 11

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Typewritten Text

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (Page 31) 
 

 

A. COMMERCIAL USES (CONTINUED) GID LOD LC B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 I-1 I-2 
72. Parcel and Express Delivery Service (Also 

see Post Office) 
     P P P P 

73. Paint Store    P P P P P P 
74. Parking Garage (commercial)     P     
75. Pawn Shop    P P P P P P 
76. Personal Services – including but not limited 

to the following: tailor, dressmaker, travel 
agency, photographer, and diet centers 

 P P P P P P P P 

77. Pet Shop    P P P P P P 
78. Photography Studio  P P P P P P P P 
79. Plumbing and Heating Supply (see Industrial 

Section) 
         

80. Pool Hall and Bowling Alley    P P P P P P 
81. Railroad Passenger Station       P P P 
82. Rental of Equipment    P P P P P P 
83. Repair Shop (inside, small items) - excluding 

auto, boat, farm equipment or other large 
items 

  CU P P P P P P 

84. Repair Shop (outside, small items) - 
excluding auto, boat, farm equipment or other 
large items 

      P P P 

85. Repair Shop (inside, large items) - excluding 
auto, boat, farm equipment or other large 
items 

    P P P P P 

86. Repair Shop (outside, large items) - 
excluding auto, boat, farm equipment or other 
large items 

      P P P 

87. Restaurant - meeting all applicable health 
standards and located principally within a 
structure having historical or architectural 
significance. The exterior facade of the 
building shall not be altered but may be 
rehabilitated provided the architecture is not 
changed. A building is deemed to be of 
historical significance if it is eligible to be 
placed on the National Register of Historic 
Places and is of architectural significance if 
its design is an example of Romanesque, 
Gothic, Medieval, Renaissance, Victorian, 
American Colonial, Greek Revival, French 
(country and formal), English (half timber 
and cottage) or Spanish. 

 SE        

88. Restaurant    P P P P P P 
89. Retail Store    P P P P P P 
90. Sexually Oriented Business (See Section 511 

for requirements) 
       P P 

91. Shoe Repair    P P P P P P 
92. Skating Rink (commercial)    P P P P P P 
93. Tanning Salon  P P P P P P P P 
94. Taxi dispatching station and terminals     P P P P P 
95. Tennis Club (See also Indoor Racquet 

Courts) 
   P P P P P P 

Page 12

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Typewritten Text

russell
Typewritten Text

russell
Typewritten Text

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (Page 32) 
 

 

 
 

                                                             
* (Amended by Council 9/13/99) 
 

A. COMMERCIAL USES (CONTINUED) GID LOD LC B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 I-1 I-2 
96. Truck or Rail Freight Yard or Terminal       P P P 
97. Shopping Center/Mall (60,000 sq. ft. or 

above) 
   P P P P P P 

98. Strip Shopping Center (60,000 sq. ft. or 
below) 

   P P P P P P 

99. Video Casinos (See Section 512 for 
requirements and  below) 

       P P 

100. Video Store    P P P P P P 
B. OFFICE, INSTITUTIONAL/PUBLIC AND 
QUASI-PUBLIC USES 

GID LOD LC B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 I-1 I-2 

1. Assisted Living Facility P P  P P P P   
2. Auditorium, Convention Center, Coliseum, 

and/or Stadium (indoor or outdoor) 
P P   P P P P P 

3. Cemeteries, Pet Cemeteries, Mausoleums, 
Memorial Gardens and Columbariums, 
provided, however that columbariums and 
memorial gardens may be permitted only in 
Zone B-2 if ancillary to a cemetery 
established prior to the adoption of the 
Zoning Ordinance on August 6, 1973 

P   P P P P P P 

4. Children’s Home or Shelter P         
5. Church, Synagogue, or Mosque, and other 

places of worship 
P  P P P P P P P 

6. Club or Lodge P   P P P P P  
7. College or University P   P  P P   
8. Communication Towers and Antennas as 

defined in the Zoning Ordinance and to 
include freestanding, building-mounted, and 
stealth towers/antennas 

SE SE SE SE SE P P P P 

9. Community Center P P P P P P P P  
10. Convention Center    P P P P P P 
11. Day Care Center/Kindergarten (child or 

adult) 
P P P P P P P P  

12. Dental Office  P P P P P P P P 
13. Doctor Office  P P P P P P P P 
14. Drug and Alcohol Treatment Center P   P P P P P P 
15. Emergency Medical Service Station P P  P  P P P P 
16. Fire or Police Station    P P P P P P 
17. Funeral Home, Mortuary, or Crematorium  P  P P P P P P 
18. Golf Course and/or Driving Range  P  P P P P P P 
19. Government buildings, except garages, 

repair, or storage yards, industrial type 
operations or operations requiring heavy and 
frequent movement of trucks. The use shall 
permit occasional shows such as coin, 
antique, card, and similar activities as 
incidental uses 

P P P P P P P P P 

Page 13

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (Page 33) 

B. OFFICE, INSTITUTIONAL/PUBLIC AND 
QUASI-PUBLIC USES 

GID LOD LC B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 I-1 I-2 

20. Government buildings, including garages, 
repair, or storage yards, industrial type 
operations or operations requiring heavy and 
frequent movement of trucks. The use shall 
permit occasional shows such as coin, 
antique, card, and similar activities as 
incidental uses 

   P P P P P P 

21. Gymnasium, institutional (also see Health 
Club) 

P P  P P P P P P 

22. Hospital P   P  P P P P 
23. Interior design and decorative art galleries if 

located within a structure having historical or 
architectural significance. The exterior facade 
of the building shall not be altered but may be 
rehabilitated provided the architecture is not 
changed. A building is deemed to be of 
historical significance if it is eligible to be 
placed on the National Register of Historic 
Places and is of architectural significance if 
its design is an example of Romanesque, 
Gothic, Medieval, Renaissance, Victorian, 
American Colonial, Greek Revival, French 
(country and formal), English (half timber 
and cottage) or Spanish. 

 SE P P P P P P P 

24. Jail     P     
25. Library P P P P P P P P P 
26. Massage Therapy, Therapeutic Steam Bath, 

or Day Spa 
 P  P P P P P P 

27. Museum P P P P P P P P P 
28. Nursing Home or Convalescent Center P P  P P P P   
29. Office: professional, business, administrative, 

executive, and other offices having no storage 
of stock in trade (other than samples) or 
heavy equipment, and no sales of 
commodities on the premises 

 P P P P P P P P 

30. Park, Athletic Field, Botanical Garden, 
Playground, public or private 

P P P P P P P P P 

31. Public Utility Transmission and Distribution 
Lines, Transmission Stations, Substations, 
Electric Transmission Towers, Water Tanks, 
Water Towers, and Telephone Exchange, but 
not Service or Storage Yards, nor Cellular or 
Personal Communication Services 
Communication Towers 

P P  P P P P P P 

Page 14

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 

Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (Page 34) 
 

B. OFFICE, INSTITUTIONAL/PUBLIC AND 
QUASI-PUBLIC USES 

GID LOD LC B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 I-1 I-2 

32. Radio and Television Stations with on-site 
transmitting/receiving towers or antennas. No 
towers or antennas shall be permitted in Zone 
B-2 if the tower or antenna constitutes the 
principal use of the property 

 P   P P P P P 

33. Radio and Television Stations and Studios 
excluding transmitting/receiving towers or 
antennas 

 P  P P P P P P 

34. Research and Development Facility  P  P P P P P P 
35. School, Beauty, Music, Art, or Dance  P  P P P P P P 
36. School, Elementary, Junior High, or High 

School 
P   P  P P P P 

37. School, Trade, Vocational, or Business P   P P P P P P 
38. Soup Kitchens*       SE   
39. Theater, indoor or outdoor, and/or Artistic 

Programs and Events (excluding motion 
picture theaters) 

P P P P P P P P  

40. Utility Company Offices  P P P P P P P P 
41. Veterinary Clinic - (a fully enclosed building) 

used for the medical treatment of domestic 
house pets and allowing for their overnight 
treatment and/or observation until the 
veterinary doctor releases the same. Outdoor 
kennels and cages are not permitted. The 
overnight lodging of pets, if not medically 
necessary, is prohibited, as are clipping 
(except where medically necessary), 
grooming, and retail sale of pet products and 
accessories (See Animal Kennels under 
Section 303.5. Commercial Uses) 

 P  P P P P P P 

42. Veterinary Hospital – the same as number 40, 
Veterinary Clinic above, except that both 
indoor and outdoor lodging of animals, as 
well as exterior kennels are permitted. 

     P P P P 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*(Amended by City Council 7/26/10) 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Line

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 

Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (Page 35) 
 
 

C. RESIDENTIAL USES GID LOD LC B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 I-1 I-2 
1. Residential, Single-Family, and Patio Home 

(*)(**)(***)(*****)(******) 
P P(°) P  P CU    

2. Condominium (**) (****)(*****) P P(°) P  P CU    
3. Residential, Two Family Dwelling (*****) 

                                                     (******) 
P P P  P CU    

4. Residential, Multifamily    P P P P   
5. Bed and Breakfast - meeting all applicable 

health standards and located principally within 
a structure having historical or architectural 
significance. The exterior of the facade of the 
building shall not be altered but may be 
rehabilitated provided the architecture is 
deemed to have architectural and historical 
significance or if it is listed on the National 
Register of Historic Places or if its design is an 
example of Romanesque, Gothic, Medieval, 
Renaissance, Victorian, American Colonial, 
Greek Revival, French (country and formal), 
English (half timber and cottage) or Spanish 
(*) 

 SE P  P     

6. Boarding or Rooming House      P P   
7. Convent and Monastery P    P     
8. Fraternity or Sorority (off campus) P   P P P P P P 
9. Group Home P  P P P P P P P 
10. Mobile Home Park      P P   
11. Live/Work Uses (***)(******)  CU   CU     

 
° – Patio homes and condominiums are permitted as a conditional use, with a minimum lot area of four thousand 
(4,000) square feet. See Sections 403.1.N and 303.2. 
 
* (Amended by Council 5/14/01)    ** (Further Amended by Council 11/25/02) 
*** (Further Amended by Council 1/24/05)   ****(Further Amended by Council 1/22/07) 
*****(Further Amended by Council 6/22/09)  ******(Further Amended by Council 7/27/09) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 
 
 

Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (Page 36) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D. INDUSTRIAL USES GID LOD LC B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 I-1 I-2 
1. Auto Holding Area - an area used by a 

wrecker service approved by the Spartanburg 
Public Safety Department for the storage of 
wrecked and disabled vehicles for a period not 
to exceed twenty (20) days from the date the 
vehicle was towed to the area by the wrecker 
service. 

   P P P P P P 

2. Auto Storage Yard - provided such storage 
yard is totally enclosed with sight proof 
screening such as a fence with slats and/or 
preferably natural vegetation. Gates and doors 
shall be of sight proof construction as well. 
Maximum storage period shall be 90 days after 
which time the vehicles shall be removed from 
the premises. Under unusual circumstances, 
the Zoning Administrator and/or Chief of 
Police may extend the holding period. 

        P 

3. Bottling Works and Wholesale Beverage 
Distributor 

      P P P 

4. Building, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical 
supplies and materials, glass sales and 
installation without outside storage of lumber, 
bricks, cement blocks, or other materials 

     P P P P 

5. Building, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical 
supplies and materials, glass sales and 
installation with outside storage of lumber, 
bricks, cement blocks, or other materials 

      P P P 

6. Candy Products and Manufacture     P  P P P 
7. Clothing Manufacture (finished product-

assembling garment) 
      P P P 

8. Cold Storage Facility       P P P 
9. Commercial Laundry Plant, or dyeing or 

diaper service 
      P P P 

10. Dairy Products processing, bottling, and 
distribution, cream manufacture, all wholesale 
basis 

      P P P 

11. Electric Equipment Assembly        P P 
12. Food Processing, in wholesale quantity except 

for meat, fish, poultry, vinegar and yeast 
      P P P 

13. Furniture Manufacturing        P P 
14. Handicrafts, manufacture and sale at retail or 

wholesale of those handicrafts which are 
manufactured predominantly by hand and 
involve the application of artistic skill 

    P P P P P 

Page 17

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 

 
 

Section 301 to 303: District Use Regulations (Page 37) 
 

D. INDUSTRIAL USES (CONTINUED) GID LOD LC B-1 B-2 B-3 B-4 I-1 I-2 
15. Gunsmith      P P P P 
16. Ice Manufacture       P P P 
17. Industrial Research      P P P P 
18. Leathergoods Manufacture        P P 
19. Junkyard         SE 
20. Light mechanical or industrial operations not 

offensive, obnoxious, or detrimental to 
neighboring uses by reason of dust, smoke, 
noise, odor, vibration, or effluents. 

       P P 

21. Light Sheet Metal Products such as ventilating 
ducts and eaves 

       P P 

22. Lumberyard       P P P 
23. Machine Shop        P P 
24. Meat Processing and Packing, excluding 

slaughter 
        P 

25. Newspaper or Magazine, publishing or 
distribution 

    P P P P P 

26. Optical and Scientific Instrument Manufacture     P P P P P 
27. Outside Storage, heavy materials and 

equipment 
       P P 

28. Pharmaceutical Manufacture       P P P 
29. Pottery and Porcelain Manufacture        P P 
30. Public Utility Storage Yard    P P P P P P 
31. Recycling Center       P P P 
32. Roofing and Tinsmith Shop    P P P P P P 
33. Sign Manufacture     P   P P 
34. Solid and Hazardous Waste Transfer Facility        P P 
35. Tobacco Manufacture and Storage        P P 
36. Textile Manufacture        P P 
37. Tire Recapping and Retreading        P P 
38. Warehouse, or Moving and Storage 

Establishments 
    P  P P P 

39. Welding Shops       P P P 
40. Wholesaling or Distribution, including the 

handling of stock and incidental retail 
     P P P P 

41. Wholesale Bakery        P P 

Page 18

russell
Text Box
D-T4, D-T5, D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

Section IV:  District Area and Dimensional Requirements (Page 40)  
 
 
§ 401  - (A) Table of Area and Dimensional Requirements By District  

These Standards Apply Only to One Residential Structure on a Zoning Lot (*8) 

MINIMUM YARD REQUIREMENTS 
 
 

Zoning 
District 

 
 

Max. 
Bldg. 

Height 
(Feet) 

 
 

Min. 
Lot Area 
(Square 

Ft.) 

 
 

Min. Lot 
Per 

Dwelling  
Unit 

(Square 
Ft.) 

Min. Lot 
Width At 
Lot Line 
For Lots 
Not On 

The 
Radius Of 
A Cul-De-
Sac (Ft.) 

(*9) 

Min. Lot 
Width At 

Front 
Bldg. Line 

On The 
Radius Of 
A Cul-De-
Sac (Ft.) 

(*9) 

Max. 
Bldg. 

Coverage 
 

(As a %) 

 
 
 
F
R
O
N
T 

 
 
 

REAR 

 
 
 

INTERIOR 
SIDE 

(*1) 

 
 
 

STREET 
SIDE 
(*2) 

 
 
 

Max. 
Gross 

Floor Area 

R-15 35/A 15,000 15,000 90 80 25 (*16) 40/B 40 15/M (*11) 15/C  
R-12 D 12,000 10,000 80 80 35 (*16) 35/B 30 10 15/C  

R-8 SFD 
(*10) 

D 8,000  60 50 40 (*16) 30/B 30 8 15/C  

R-8 D 8,000 6,000 60 50 40 (*16) 30/B 30 8 15/C  
R-6 (*14) D 4,000 2,000/F 50 50 50 15/B 20 5 15/C  

GID/ 
LOD (*13) 

E 4,000/N 
(*5)(*14) 

2,000 
(*5) 

50 
40 

50 
40 

50/G 
50/G (*6) 

25/H 
15 

15/L 
15/L (*5) 

10/L 
5 (*5) 

15/C 
15/C (*4) 

 

LC (*12) 35/A 21,780 Or 
½ Acre 

   • 35 30 10 10/C  

B-1 35/A  1,800  50  25 10 5/I 15/J K 
B-2  (*7)   50     (*3)  
B-3   800  50  15   10/J K 
B-4   800  50  25   10/J K 
I-1       25 15 15 25 K 
I-2       25 15 15 25 K 

LEGEND: Letters A thru N are defined in Subsection 403.1BLANK SPACE:  No requirement.*11 (Further Amended by Council 5/11/98)Note: “Spacing Of 
Structures” - See Subsection 501.13 (B)(6)*12 (Further Amended by Council 12/12/94)• No individual structure shall have a floor area greater than 12,000 
square feet.*13 (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01)*1 - INTERIOR SIDE: A side yard not abutting a street right-of-way.*6 (Further Amended by Council 
3/12/79*14 (Further Amended by Council 11/25/02)*2 - SIDE STREET: A side yard that abuts a street right-of-way.*7 (Further Amended by Council 5/5/80)*15 
(Further Amended by Council 1/27/03)*3 (Amended by Council 9/8/75)*8Further Amended by Council 3/23/81*16 (Further Amended by Council 11/22/04) 
*4 (Further Amended by Council 11/21/77) *9 (Further Amended by Council 9/5/89)*5 (Further Amended by Council 10/2/78)*10 (Further Amended by Council 
2/10/92) 

Page 19

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Text Box
Reference Section 515 Use Table of the Downtown Code 

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

Section IV:  District Area and Dimensional Requirements (Page 41)  
 

 
§ 401 - (B) Table of Area Dimensional Requirements By District 

These Standards Apply to One or More Commercial Buildings on a Zoning Lot (*8) 
 
 

Zoning 
District 

 
Max. 
Bldg. 

Height 
(Feet) 

 
Min. 

Lot Area 
(Square 

Ft.) 

 
Min. Lot 

Per 
Dwelling  

Unit 
(Square 

Ft.) 

Min. Lot 
Width at Lot 
Line for Lots 

Not on the 
Radius of a 
Cul-De-Sac 
(Ft.)(*9)(*15) 

Min. Lot 
Width at 

Front Bldg. 
Line on the 
Radius of a 
Cul-De-Sac 

(Ft.) (*9) 

Max. Bldg. 
Coverage 
(As a %) 

 
F
R
O
N
T 

 
REAR 

 
INTERIOR 

SIDE 
(*1) 

 
STREET 

SIDE 
(*2) 

 
Max. 
Gross 

Floor Area 

GID/ 
LOD 

(*13)(*14) 

E 6,000  
(*5) 

4,000 
(*5) 

100 50 50/G 
(*6) 

25/H 15/L 
(*5) 

10/L 
(*5) 

15/C 
(*4) 

 

LC 
(*12) 

35/A 21,780 
Or ½ Acre 

 100 50 • 35 30 10 10/C  

B-1 35/A  1,800 100 50  25 10 5/I 15/J K 
B-2  (*7)  100 50     (*3)  
B-3   800 100 50  15   10/J K 
B-4   800 100 50  25   10/J K 
I-1    100 50  25 15 15 25 K 
I-2    100 50  25 15 15 25 K 

 
LEGEND:  Letters A thru M are defined in Subsection 403.1    BLANK SPACE:  No requirement. 

Note: “Spacing Of Structures: See Subsection 501.13 (B)(6) 

• No individual structure shall have a floor area greater than 12,000 square feet. 

*1 - INTERIOR SIDE: A side yard not abutting a street right-of-way.  

*2 - SIDE STREET: A side yard that abuts a street right-of-way. 

 

Page 20

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Text Box
Reference Section 515 Use Table of the Downtown Code 

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
Section IV:  District Area and Dimensional Requirements (Page 42)  

 
§ 402 - Standards For Group Housing Projects 
Two or More Residential Structures on a Zoning Lot (***) 
 
Site Plan Review Required (See Section 501.13) 
DISTRICT  

MINIMUM 
PROJECT 
AREA 

MIN. LOT 
AREA PER 

DWELLING 
UNIT (SQ. FT) 

MINIMUM 
LOT 

WIDTH 
(IN FEET) 

USABLE OPEN 
SPACE REQ. 

PER DWELLING 
UNIT (SQ. FEET) 

• 

MINIMUM 
FRONT 
YARD 

DEPTH 
(IN FEET) 

MINIMUM 
REAR 
YARD 

DEPTH 
(IN FEET) 

MINIMUM 
SIDE YARD 

DEPTH 
(IN FEET) 

MAXIMUM 
AREA COVERED 

BY ALL 
BUILDINGS  

(IN %) 
GROUP 
HOUSING 
PROJECTS 

 
4 ACRES 

OR MORE 

 
R-12 -- 7,000 

 
100 ft. 

 
1,700 

 
35 ft. 

 
30 ft. 

 
10 ft. 

 
40 % OF TOTAL 

LOT AREA 
GROUP 
HOUSING 
PROJECTS, 
R-6, R-8, B-1 (*) 

 
2 ACRES 

R-8 – 5,000 
R-6 – 2,500 

B-1 – 1,500 (*) 

 
100 ft. 

R
-
8 
– 
1
0
0
0 

R-6 – 750 
B-1 – 450 (*) 

 
35 ft. 

 
30 ft 

 
10 ft. 

 
50% OF TOTAL 

LOT AREA 

GROUP 
HOUSING 
PROJECTS, 
B-2, B-3, B-4 

 
NONE 

B-2 – None 
B-3 – 750 
B-4 – 750 

(**) 

 B-2 – 50 
B-3 – 75 

B-4 – 100 

0 ft. 
15 ft. 
15 ft. 

0 ft. 
10 ft. 
10 ft. 

0 ft. 
10 ft. 
10 ft. 

 

 
• USABLE OPEN SPACE: is that required portion of a group housing project at ground level unoccupied by a principal or accessory buildings 
available to all occupants of the project.  This space of minimum prescribed dimensions shall be unobstructed to the sky and shall not be devoted to 
roads, service driveways, parking areas, and/or loading berths, but shall be usable for greenway, recreation and other leisure activities normally carried 
on outdoors.Note:  “Spacing Of Structures: -- See Subsection 501.13 (B)(6) 
* (Amended by Council 11/21/77) ** (Further Amended by Council 5/5/80)  *** (Further Amended by Council 3/23/81) 
 
 
 

Page 21

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Text Box
Reference Section 515 Use Table of the Downtown Code 

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
Section IV:  District Area and Dimensional Requirements (Page 46) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 22

russell
Line

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 (Downtown Urban Code

russell
Line

russell
Line



D-T4 (Downtown Urban Code)

Note: Building Height 
shall be limited by the 
number of stories indicated 
in accordance with 
Section 3.6

Front Setback : 6 ft min. - 18 ft. max.

Rear Setback : 3 ft. min.

Side Setback : No RequirementSide Setback : No Requirement

Lot Coverage: 70% Max.

See Section 3.3 of Downtown Code
for Bufferyard, Outbuilding Standards, 
Private Frontages, and Parking Provisions

Note: Buildings with corner 
lot shall have 6 ft. min. setback

D-T5 (Downtown Urban Code)

Note: Building Height 
shall be limited by the 
number of stories indicated 
in accordance with 
Section 3.6

Front Setback : 0 ft. min. - 12 ft. max.

Rear Setback : 0 ft. min.

Side Setback : No RequirementSide Setback No Requirement

Lot Coverage: 100% Max.

See Section 3.3 of Downtown Code
for Bufferyard, Outbuilding Standards, 
Private Frontages, and Parking Provisions

Note: Buildings with corner 
lot shall have 0 ft. min. - 24 ft. max. 
side setback

D-T6 (Downtown Urban Code)

Note: Building Height 
shall be limited by the 
number of stories indicated 
in accordance with 
Section 3.6

Front Setback : 0 ft. min. - 6 ft. max.

Rear Setback : 0 ft. min. 

Side Setback : 0 ft. min. - 24 ft. max. Side Setback : 0 ft. min. - 24 ft. max. 

Lot Coverage: 100% Max.

See Section 3.3 of Downtown Code
for Bufferyard, Outbuilding Standards, 
Private Frontages, and Parking Provisions

Note: Buildings with corner 
lot shall have 0 ft. min. - 6 ft. max. 
side setback

Frontage Buildout : 
80% min. at setback

Frontage Buildout : 
60% except at Kennedy St.

Frontage Buildout :
None

Page 23

russell
Text Box
This page is to be inserted as a replacement for B-2 Dimensional Requirements  



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
Section IV:  District Area and Dimensional Requirements (Page 51) 

 
H. There shall be a minimum front yard having a depth of not less than fifteen (15) feet 

measured from the setback line to the front building line.  Through lots shall have the 
required front yards on both streets.  In no case shall the front building line be nearer 
than forty (40) feet from the center line of the street on which the lot fronts. (****) 

 
I. For the B-1 District there shall be a minimum interior side yard of five (5) feet.  

However, if the building height exceeds thirty-five (35) feet, the interior side yard shall 
be equal to one-fifth (1/5) of the building height. 

 
J. For B-1 Business District, nonresidential structures on a corner lot must set back a 

minimum of forty (40) feet from any side street right-of-way line if parking is to be 
permitted between the principal building and the side street.  For multiple family 
dwellings and high-rise, apartments in Zones B-1, B-2, B-3, and B-4, the minimum 
street side yards shall be as follows (*): 

B-1 15 feet 
B-2 10 feet 
B-3 10 feet 
B-4 10 feet 

 
Plus one (1) foot for each two (2) feet by which the building exceeds thirty-five (35) 
feet. 

 
K. Maximum gross floor area for buildings in business and industrial districts will not 

exceed the percentage of lot area shown in the following table for the appropriate 
district. 

Zone Districts Maximum Floor Area as a Percent of Lot Area 
B-1 100% 
B-2 No Limit 
B-3 200% 
B-4 200% 
I-1 100% 
I-2 100% 

 
L. Single-family and two-family dwellings shall maintain a rear yard of 15 feet and an 

interior side yard of 5 feet. (**)(****) 
 

M. Interior side yards in Zone R-15 may be reduced to a minimum of 10 feet provided a 
minimum of 30 feet is maintained on the interior side yards between two adjoining 
single family homes. (***) 

 
N. Patio homes and condominiums are permitted with a minimum lot area of four thousand 

(4,000) square feet as a conditional use in the LOD (Limited Office District) subject to a 
finding by the Planning Commission that such uses: (****) 

 
 
* (Amended by Council 9/8/75)    ** (Further Amended by Council 10/2/78) 
*** (Further Amended by Council 5/11/98) **** (Amended by Council 11/25/02 
 

 

Page 24

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 

In case of all other lots other than corner lots, accessory buildings shall be located not less 
than five (5) feet from any side or rear lot line, except where a rear or side lot line abuts an 
alley, the accessory building may be located no closer than two (2) feet from such rear or side 
lot line. 

 
 501.5 Reduction of Lot and Yard Areas. 
 

No yard or lot existing at the time passage of this Ordinance shall be reduced in size or area 
below the minimum requirements set forth herein.  Yards or lots created after the effective 
date of this Ordinance shall meet at least the minimum requirements established by this 
Ordinance. 

 
 501.6 Moving Structures. 
 

No structure shall be moved to or placed on any lot until a permit for such removal and 
placement is obtained from the Zoning Administrator, who shall ascertain that such 
placement is in conformance with the specifications of this Ordinance or other City code. 

 
501.7 Temporary Uses.  

 
If applicable requirements of the Health Department are met, customary temporary uses shall 
be permitted, including but not necessarily limited to temporary structures and storage areas 
on construction sites or sites of a grading operation, and temporary structures of public 
agencies used in the conduct of governmental operations. 

 
 501.8 Visibility at Intersections.(*)(**)(***)(****) 
 

On a corner lot in an residential district, GID, LOD, LC, B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4, I-1 and I-2 an 
Intersection Sight Distance (ISD) shall be maintained by a triangular area formed by the 
right-of-way lines of the intersecting streets and clear line of sight from a vehicle located 15 
feet behind the curb line of the approached street.  The dimensions of the three legs of the 
sight triangle are dependent upon the width of the roadway and speed limit.  The intersection 
sight distance and sight triangle dimensions shall be determined by procedures detailed in the 
latest edition of the South Carolina Department of Highways and Public Transportation 
Highway Design Manual.  Not planting, fence or other structure, or man-made earth mound, 
or change in earth grade, shall be placed or maintained if it obstructs vision between a height 
of two (2) feet and ten (10) feet above the grade of the intersection.  The requirements of this 
section shall not be deemed to prohibit any necessary retaining wall. 

 
The South Carolina Department of Highways and Public Transportation Highway 
Design Manual is available for reference in the City Public Works Department office.  This 
section shall not apply to any intersection which is controlled by a traffic signal exhibiting 
green, yellow, and red signals. 

 
* (Amended by Council 2/6/84)    ** (Further Amended by Council 12/12/94) 
*** (Further Amended by Council 8/11/97)  **** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 

 
 
 

 

Section 501: General and Supplemental Regulations (Page 56)

Page 25

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 
501.9 Street Access. (*) 

 
No building shall be erected on a lot which does not abut an improved public street accepted 
by the City of Spartanburg except as provided in Section V, 507 of this Ordinance. 

 
 501.10 Performance Standards. 
 

Any use established after the effective date of this Ordinance shall be operated so as to 
comply with the following standards.  No use already established on the date of this 
Ordinance shall be altered or modified so as to conflict with, or further conflict with these 
performance standards. 

 
A. Noise.  No use shall be conducted which produces sound pressure levels which 

exceeds the decibel limits in the octave bands designated in the following table:** 
 

 General, City-Wide Central Business District 
Day-time Definition 7:00 a.m.-10:00 p.m. 
Day-time Noise Limit 60 dB(A) 80 dB(A) 
Night-time Noise Limit 55 dB(A) 75 dB(A) 

 
B. Sounds of Short Duration, as from forge hammers, punch presses, and metal shears, 

which cannot be measured with the impact noise filter as manufactured by the General 
Radio Company, or its equivalent, in order to determine the peak value of the impact.  
For sound so measured the sound pressure level set forth in the table under paragraph 
A above, may be increased by six decibels. 
 

C. Air Pollution, Odor, and Toxic Fumes.  All uses shall comply with the provisions of 
Article VI of the City Code, Section 16-54, et seq. 
 

D. Exemption.  The following noise shall be exempt from the prohibitions of  
Section (A), above even when they cause a disturbance: Noise resulting from school or 
university marching bands, or marching band practices or marching band competition 
provided they are prohibited after 8:30 P.M. until 8:30 A.M.** 
 

 501.11 Division of Zoning Lots. 
 

No zoning lot shall hereafter be divided into two or more zoning lots and no portion of any 
zoning lot shall be sold, unless all zoning lots resulting from such division or sale shall 
conform with all applicable bulk regulations of the zoning district in which the property is 
located. 

 
*(Amended by Council 7/10/78)               **(Further Amended by Council 8/23/10) 
 

Section 501: General and Supplemental Regulations (Page 57)

Page 26

russell
Text Box
Downtown Urban Code

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

Section 503. Sign Regulations (Page 103) 
 
§ 503. SIGN REGULATIONS. (*)(****) 
 

503.1 Purpose. 
 

The purpose of these regulations is to provide minimum control of signs to promote the 
health, safety and welfare by: 
 
• Lessening hazards to pedestrians and vehicular traffic; 
• Preserving property values; 
• Preventing unsightly and detrimental development which has a blighting influence upon 

residential, business, and industrial uses; 
• Preventing signs from reaching excessive size or numbers such that they obscure one 

another to the detriment of all concerned; and 
• Securing certain fundamentals of design for the city. 

 
503.2 General Sign Provisions. 

 
503.21 Illumination. Where illumination is permitted it may be direct or indirect. No sign 

shall display intermittent, flashing or rotating lights, except for time, temperature, 
stock market quotations, or electronic signs described in Section 503.45. When it is 
used, sign illumination shall be so shielded as not to cast direct light onto public ways 
and residential districts. Intensity of light cast on any residential district shall not 
exceed 0.5 foot candles. 

 
503.22 Public Safety. Words, phrases, symbols, characters or signals used in a manner that 

might be misconstrued as a public safety warning or traffic sign or signal will not be 
permitted. The placement and configuration of signs shall not be located or designed 
so as to be misconstrued as a public safety warning or traffic signal. 

 
503.23 Signs Permitted in Any District. The following signs are permitted in any district and 

are excluded from the computation of the total sign area requirements of this Section. 
 

Table A - - Signs Permitted in Any District 
Sign 
Type 

Requirements 

A. Public Signs or Notices Posted by or at the discretion of a governmental agency. 
B. Property Promotion and 

Contractor’s Notices 
(**)(***)(*****) 

A sign on each single lot not exceeding four (4) square feet in 
residential areas (R-15, R-12, R-8, R-8SF, R-6); thirty-two (32) 
square feet in non-residential areas (GID, LOD, LC, B-1, B-2, B-3, 
B-4, I-1, I-2). 

C. Church Bulletin Boards On the same zoning lot as a place of worship, a Church Bulletin 
Board not exceeding twelve (12) square feet may be erected. 

D.  Historical Markers Erected by a bona fide historical association or a governmental 
agency 

 
* (Amended by Council 4/4/88)    ** (Amended by Council 2/10/92) 
*** (Further Amended by Council 12/12/94)   **** (Further Amended by Council 3/4/96) 
***** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 
 
 
 

Page 27

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



Section 503. Sign Regulations 

herein but also the frame structure, stand and all of the components. The 
responsibility for sign removal will be joint and several with the person 
occupying the property and the property owner. (*)(****) 

503.28 Visibility at Intersection. On a corner lot in any residential district, GID, 
LOD, LC, B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4, I-1, I-2 an Intersection Sight Distance (ISD) 
shall be maintained by a triangular area formed by the right-of-way lines 
of the intersecting streets and clear line of sight from a vehicle located 15 
feet behind the curb line of the approached street. The dimensions of the 
three legs of the sight triangle are dependent upon the width of the 
roadway and speed limit. The intersection sight distance and sight triangle 
dimensions shall be determined by procedures detailed in the latest edition 
of the South Carolina Department of Highways and Public Transportation 
Highway Design Manual. No planting, fence or other structure, or man-
made earth mound, or change in earth grade, shall be placed or maintained 
if it obstructs vision between a height of two (2) feet and ten (10) feet 
above the grade of the intersection. The requirements of this section shall 
not be deemed to prohibit any necessary retaining wall. (**)(***)(*****) 

Property lineProperty line

ROWROW

25 ft. 25 ft.

25
ft.

25
ft.

VISIBILITY AT INTERSECTIONS

The South Carolina Department of Highways and Public Transportation 
Highway Design Manual is available for reference in the City Public 
Works Department office. This section shall not apply to any intersection 
which is controlled by a traffic signal exhibiting green, yellow, and red 
signals.

503.29 Sign Measurements.

(A) Sign Height: Shall be measured from the natural grade, curb, or 
street centerline, whichever is higher, to the uppermost point of the 
sign face or structure. 

* (Amended by Council 6/27/94)   ** (Further Amended by Council 12/12/94) 
*** (Further Amended by Council 8/11/97)  **** (Further Amended by Council 11/13/00) 
***** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 

[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

Page 28

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



Section 503. Sign Regulations 

computation of allowable square footage provided such 
sign bears no commercial message or logos, does not 
exceed two square feet in area and does not exceed two 
feet in height.  Painted signs shall be included in the 
computation of allowable square footage listed in Table C. 
(*) (**) (***) (****) (*****) (******) (*******) 

Table C - - Total Area of Business Signs 
Zone 

District
Front Building Wall Front Lot Line 

GID/LOD 1.5 sq. ft. .or 0.5 sq. ft. 
LC 1.5 sq. ft. .or 0.5 sq. ft. 
B-1 1.5 sq. ft.  .or 1.0 sq. ft. 
B-2 1.5 sq. ft. .or 1.0 sq. ft. 
B-3 1.5 sq. ft. .or 1.0 sq. ft. 
B-4 1.5 sq. ft.  .or 1.0 sq. ft. 
I-1 1.0 sq. ft. .or 1.5 sq. ft. 
I-2 1.0 sq. ft. .or 1.5 sq. ft. 

1) Example: To illustrate the above table, consider the following 
example. 

The building is a storage warehouse in a B-4 Zoning District. The 
permitted sign area can be calculated in two ways - -1) Linear feet 
of the front building wall (50) feet) multiplied by a factor of 1.5. 
Therefore, the maximum area of a permitted sign is 75 square feet; 
2) linear feet of the front lot line (100 feet) multiplied by a factor 
of 1.0. The corresponding maximum sign area is 100 square feet. 
The maximum sign area may be the greater of the two options.
(see illustration on next page) 

Figure 503-10 

100 feet

50 feet

B-4  Zoning
District Length of Front Wall=  50 feet

x (from table) 1.5 sq. ft.

75 sq. ft

Length of Lot Line= 100 feet

x (from table) 1.0 sq. ft.

100 sq. ft.

Total area not to exceed 75 sq. ft.

Total area not to exceed 100 sq. ft.

* (Amended by Council 7/9/90)   ** (Further Amended by Council 9/13/93) 
*** (Further Amended by Council 6/27/94)  **** (Further Amended by Council 12/12/94) 
***** (Further Amended by Council 2/24/97) ****** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 
******* (Further Amended by Council 1/12/04) 

[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

Page 29

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

Section 503. Sign Regulations (Page 113) 
 

 

1) Example: Figuring the total sign area for individual businesses like the gas/convenience 
store in the example below is accomplished by adding the sign area for each individual 
sign. The maximum allowable sign area is figured according to the options noted in Table 
C. 

 

 
Signs for individual businesses in Zones GID, LOD, LC, B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4, I-1 and 
I-2 shall in no event exceed in the aggregate 200 square feet in area. However, where 
the lineal footage of a lot exceeds 500 lineal feet, the maximum square footage of 
signage may be increased to 250 square feet. Super Store, shopping center, strip 
center and anchor store signs shall be exempt from the aggregate above. Individual 
business square footage allowable in shopping centers and strip centers shall be 
calculated only using the front building wall of the business, in accordance with 
Table C. The maximum allowable square footage per business in a shopping center 
or strip center shall not exceed 200 square feet. 

 

A freestanding strip center sign shall not exceed sixty (60) square feet and is 
permitted in addition to the individual business signs for strip centers. 

A shopping center is permitted one (1) freestanding sign of no greater than two hundred fifty (250) square feet 
in area if the center is located on a site of five (5) to twenty (20) acres and up to three hundred (300) square 
feet in area if the center is located on a site of over twenty (20) acres, and is permitted in addition to 
individual business signs in shopping centers. 
 
 

Page 30

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 Section 503. Sign Regulations (Page 116) 
 
 

G. A ground-based freestanding business sign shall be no greater than thirty-five 
(35) feet in height above either the nearest curb or street centerline, or ground 
level at which point the sign is erected, whichever is higher. 

 
H. Permanently affixed business pole signs shall be permitted to be constructed 

in any required yard, in accordance with subsection 503.26. 
 

I. Wall signs placed flat against a wall and essentially parallel to it shall have no height 
limitations. 

 
J. All changeable copy signs in Zones GID, LOD, LC, B-1, and B-2 shall be 

permanently affixed to the superstructure of the principal sign on a zoning 
lot. Said sign shall be placed a minimum of ten (10) feet above ground level 
(**)(****). 

 
K. No signs shall be permitted to project into any public right-of-way. However, 

small-projecting signs may be permitted in Zone B-2 provided they are no 
more than four (4) feet from the face of a building. Such projecting sign shall 
be mounted at least nine (9) feet high and can not be internally lit, backlit or 
use any neon (*)(**). 

 
L. Bonus Signage Permitted in the Interstate 26 Corridor Overlay Zoning 

District (***). 
 

1.) An overlay Zoning District is hereby established for all lands currently 
inside the City of Spartanburg corporate limits which are situated 
between the eastern edge of the Interstate Highway 26 right-of-way and 
the western edge of the Blackstock Road right-of-way. This Overlay 
Zoning District shall apply to lands currently inside the City as of the 
effective date of this ordinance and shall automatically expand to apply 
to future lands within this specific corridor when future annexations are 
approved by City Council. 

2.) The Overlay Zoning District shall apply only to properties which are 
zoned B-1 and B-3. 

3.) Bonus signage shall only apply to portions of B-1 and B-3 zoned lots 
which meet the definition of “Rear Yard” as defined in Section I, δ108, 
“Definitions”, of the Zoning Ordinance. 

4.) Bonus signage will only apply to pole signs which are proposed for the 
rear yards of B-1 and B-3 zoned lands. 

5.) Bonus pole signs may extend to a maximum height of 45 feet to be 
measured from the base of the pole. 

 
 
 
* (Amended by Council 11/13/95)  ** (Further Amended by Council 12/12/95) 

*** (Amended by Council 3/12/96)  **** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 

 

  
 

Page 31

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out



Section 503. Sign Regulations  

Figure 503.12 - - Advertising Sign Intervals 

GOLF USA ! EARTH DAYEARTH DAY
20002000

1000 FOOT MINIMUM

500 ft. 500 ft.

B. Gross area of an advertising sign shall not exceed three-hundred 
(300) square feet per advertising face. 

C. Gross area of painted panel signs shall not exceed three-hundred 
seventy eight (378) square feet plus extended advertising copy not 
to exceed ninety-five (95) square feet per advertising face. 

D. The height of an advertising or painted panel sign shall not exceed 
thirty-five (35) feet. The height of the uppermost point of any 
advertising or painted panel (including frame) shall not exceed the 
following: 

1) If such sign is placed flat against a wall or is within five 
(5) feet of a wall and essentially parallel to it, the height 
shall be no greater than thirty-five (35) feet above the 
nearest curb or street centerline, or the finished lot grade 
along the wall on which the sign is erected, whichever is 
the higher. 

2) If such sign is a ground sign and does not come within 
paragraph (1) above, the height shall be no greater than 
thirty-five (35) feet above either the nearest curb or street 
centerline, or ground level at which point the sign is 
erected, whichever is higher. 

E. No single face advertising sign shall be erected unless it is erected 
on a single pole if the substructure is visible to moving traffic. 

F. Appropriate low maintenance landscaping areas shall be planted 
and maintained at the base of all single-face advertising signs. 
Such planting areas shall be approved by the Office of Community 
Enhancement of the City of Spartanburg. 

G.

All 

Advertising signs are permitted in zone B-2. Said signs shall be 
subject to the following limitations: 

[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
(B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 32

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 

 Section 503. Sign Regulations (Page 119) 
 

 

1) The sign shall contain no more than twenty (20) square feet. 
2) The sign shall be located no more than three-hundred (300) feet from 

the business advertised. 
3) The inscription on the sign shall only direct attention to the specific 

business related to it. It shall not advertise anything else whatsoever. 
 

G. No advertising sign shall violate the corner visibility restrictions of Section 
503.13 (J). 

 
H. No advertising sign shall have more than two (2) advertising faces and only 

one (1) such face shall be visible from each direction of traffic. 
 

503.45 Additional Requirements for all Signs in Business and Industrial Districts.  
A. Electronic variable message signs and electrical fixed message signs are 

prohibited, excepting electrical fixed message signs displaying gasoline prices.  
Additionally, public agencies may use such signs for traffic control, emergency 
management, and speed trailers, etc. (*)(*****)(******) 

 
B. If such sign or signs are placed flat against a wall or are within five (5) feet of a 

wall and essentially parallel to it, the total area of all such signs shall not exceed 
one-third (1/3) the area of the wall (including window and door area and 
cornices). 

 
C. Within the GID, LOD, LC, B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4, I-1 and I-2 Districts, no 

freestanding ground sign or pole sign shall be located within ten (10) feet of any 
lot line. The point of measurement shall be from the lot line to the outmost edge 
of the sign and not to the pole or foundation. (**)(***)(****) 

 
D. Business signs to advertise or generally identify a planned business or industrial 

development such as a shopping center, office park, or industrial park will be 
permitted on the premises. Such signs may have one or two faces for each lot 
line adjacent to a street; provided, no such sign shall exceed a surface area, per 
face, 0.5 square foot for each one (1) lineal foot of said lot line, provided that not 
more than one (1) sign may be placed along any one (1) street. All such signs 
shall be removed when the business or industrial concern is operational. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* (Amended by Council 5/8/95)   ** (Amended by Council 12/12/94) 
*** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) **** (Further Amended by Council 4/28/03) 
***** (Further Amended by Council 5/24/04) ******(Further Amended by Council 11/26/07) 
 
 

Page 33

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
  
 Section 503. Sign Regulations (Page 120) 
 
 

503.5 Portable Signs. 
 

503.51 Portable signs shall be permitted in Zones B-3, B-4, I-1 and I-2, and must receive a 
permit prior to being displayed or erected. They may not be permanently attached to 
the ground, building or other structure. All portable signs must be located on the 
premises for which they are advertising. Portable signs shall be permitted, provided 
the following standards are met. (*) 

 
A. Said sign shall not have flashing lights. 

 
B. Said sign shall not have lights the color of red, amber or green. 

 
C. If a business establishment sign or signs have already been constructed to the 

maximum area allowable under Section 503.43, item A, of this Ordinance, no 
mobile portable sign shall be permitted on the zoning lot. 

 
D. Sidewalk and sandwich signs may be placed in the public right-of-way only 

in zone B-2 and where an encroachment permit has been issued. (*) 
 

E. All such signs shall be setback a distance of eight (8) feet from the edge of 
the sidewalk or edge of the street right-of-way, whichever is less. 

 
F. All such signs shall be protected with ground fault devices within six (6) 

months after the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 

G. Within six (6) months after adoption of this Ordinance, all such signs shall 
show the name and address of the owner. 

 
H. In such event a portable sign shall be installed, erected, or constructed in 

violation of this section, the Zoning Administrator shall notify by registered 
mail or written notice served personally, the owner or lessee thereof to alter 
such sign so as to comply with this section and to secure the necessary permit 
thereof or to remove the sign. If such order is not complied with within ten 
(10) days thereof the Zoning Administrator shall remove such sign at the 
expense of the owner or lessee thereof. 

 

I. All signs shall be designed to resist 28 PSF wind pressure. Signs placed on 
property and not properly anchored will be subject to immediate citation. 
Anchoring of portable signs shall be provided by one of the following 
methods: (**) 

 
 
* (Further Amended by Council 4/28/03)  ** (Further Amended by Council 1/12/04) 
 
 
 
 

Page 34

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 

Section 504: Off-Street Parking and Loading (Page 127)  
 
 
§ 504. REGULATIONS FOR OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING 
 

504.1 Off-Street Parking and Loading. (*)(**) 
 

Permanent off-street parking and loading space in the amount specified by this Section shall be provided, at the time of the erection of any 
building or at the time any principal building is enlarged or increased in capacity by adding dwelling units, guest rooms, seats, or floor area, or 
before conversion from one type of use or occupancy to another. Such parking space may be provided in a parking garage or parking lot or in 
driveways serving single and two family residences. The provisions of this Section shall not apply to the B-2 Business District. Parking and 
loading facilities provided in accordance with the terms of this Ordinance shall not subsequently be reduced below the requirements of this 
Ordinance. No portion of the area of any street right-of-way or street setback shall be considered as fulfilling or partially fulfilling the off-street 
parking requirements of this Section. 

 
504.11 Parking Lots to be Improved. Parking lots intended to provided for the off-street 

parking space required by this Ordinance shall be improved and maintained with any 
of the following paving standards: 

 
1. Concrete Interlocking Paver Systems – sand base 
2. Concrete Design blocks on sand base 
3. Brick pavers – flexible/rigid base 
4. Granite Setts on 6” sand base 
5. Cut stone on flexible/rigid base 
6. Treated wood block in cement bed 
7. Exposed aggregate in concrete base 
8. 4” Stabilized aggregate base plus 1” hot laid asphaltic concrete binder 
9. Bituminous surfacing - - double treatment 
10. Bituminous pavement (4 ½”) Plant mix hot-laid—single course 
11. Concrete (4”) 2,500 lb. or 3,000 lb. mix 

 
(See specifications of the above; see Illustration Appendix, Illustrations J & K.) 
 
It shall be unnecessary to pave parking lots under the following circumstances: 
 
a. Residential structures containing no more than 4 units. 
b. In Industrial Zones crushed rock may be substituted. 
c. In instances where a residential unit is converted to an office or commercial use 

which requires less than five (5) spaces, the paving of said spaces may be 
delayed until the new use requires five (5) parking spaces or more. Until that 
time crushed rock may be utilized in the required off-street parking area. 

 
 
* (Amended by Council 8/7/78)  ** (Further Amended by Council 3/4/85) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 35

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 

Section 506:  Communication Towers (Page 183) 
 
 
§ 506. COMMUNICATION TOWERS (*)  
 

506.1 Definitions (**) 
 

In addition to the definitions contained in Section I, δ 108 of the Zoning Ordinance for the 
City of Spartanburg, the following definitions shall apply to this Section: 
 
“Communication Tower” as used in this ordinance means a tower, pole, or similar structure 
which supports a telecommunications antenna operated for commercial purposes above 
ground in a fixed location, freestanding, guyed, or on a building. 
 
“Telecommunications” (as defined in the federal Telecommunications Act of 1996) means 
the transmission, between or among points specified by the user, of information of the user’s 
choosing, without change in the form or content of the information as sent and received. 
 
“Antenna” means a device, dish or array used to transmit or receive telecommunications 
signals. 
 
“Height” of a communication tower is the distance from the base of the communication 
tower to the top of the communication tower. 
 
“Board” means the Zoning Board of Adjustment and Appeals. 
 
“Stealth Tower” as used in this ordinance means a communication tower designed and 
installed in a manner such that the antenna, supporting apparatus and associated structures are 
aesthetically and architecturally appropriate with regards to an existing structure or 
immediate environment in which the communication tower is located.  Examples include, 
without limitation, church steeples, bell towers, flag poles, etc. 

 
506.2 Communications Tower and Antenna Permitted. (***)(****) 

 
506.2.1  Determination by Zoning Administrator. In the B-3, B-4, I-1 and I-2 zoning districts, 
a communication tower and/or antenna may be permitted by the Zoning Administrator 
without further review upon determination that the applicant has submitted all of the 
materials required under Section 506.7 (Application requirements) and all of the applicable 
requirements and/or conditions in this ordinance are met.  All towers permitted in residential, 
GID, LOD, LC, B-1 and B-2 zoning districts must be stealth towers approved by special 
exception.  Co-locations on existing towers or structures, or co-locations, reconstructions or 
new construction within the footprints of existing electric  

 
 
 
* (Amended – Added as New Section – by City Council 1/27/97) 
** (Further Amended by Council 10/12/98) *** (Further Amended by Council 4/12/99) 
**** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 

 
 

Page 36

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 
 

Section 506:  Communication Towers (page 188) 
 
 
 

shall be lighted.  Such towers shall be illuminated by strobe lights 
during daylight and twilight hours, red lights during nighttime hours.  
A copy of any plans whereby a communication tower will be located 
within such 12,000 ft. area shall be provided by the applicant to the 
Spartanburg Downtown Memorial Airport Manager for comment.  
Any comments shall be made within 10 days of delivery to said 
manager and sent to the technical services representative designated 
by the Municipal Association of South Carolina as provided in 
Section 506.11 with a copy to the Zoning Administrator and the 
applicant.  Prior to issuance of a building permit, applicant shall 
provide documentation to the Zoning Administrator that the 
proposed communications tower has been reviewed by the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA), if so required, and that a finding of 
no hazard to air navigation has been determined. 

 
506.5 Permitted Height of Freestanding Communication Towers. 

 
District (*) Permitted Height 
R-15      R-12     R-8SFD  
R-8        R-6       GID 
LOD     LC         B-2 

Not exceeding 200 feet provided 
special exception approval 

 
Commercial Districts Permitted Height 
B-1        B-3       B-4 Not exceeding 200 feet. 

 
Industrial Districts Permitted Height 
I-1          I-2 Not exceeding 250 feet 

 
Planned Development District 
Permitted under conditions set forth in plan. 

 

506.6 Permitted Height of Building-Mounted Communication Towers. 

 
All Districts 
 
A communication tower shall not exceed 20 feet in height if mounted on a 
building or any structure other than a freestanding or guyed communications 
tower. 

 
506.7 Application Requirements. 

The following information shall be submitted for all applications for approval of a communication tower: 
506.7.1   Specifications.  One copy of typical specifications for proposed structures and antennae, including 
description of design characteristics and material. 

 
* (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01)

Page 37

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 

Section 506:  Communication Towers (page 190) 
 
 
 

claims up to $1,000,000.00 in the aggregate which may arise from operation of the facility 
during its life, at no cost to the municipality, in form approved by the municipal attorney. 

 
506.7.9   Application Fees.  All applicants for approval of a communication tower must be 
accompanied by a fee of $200.00 and, if applicable, any additional fees required by the 
municipality on applications for special exception or variance. 

 
506.8 Special Exceptions and Variances. 

 
506.8.1   Special Exception. In the event a proposed communication tower is within the 
residential, GID, LOD, LC, or B-2 zones and /or an applicant does not meet any one or more 
of the applicable requirements in Sections 506.3, 506.4 and 506.6, an applicant may apply 
directly to the board for a special exception permitting the use.  Such application shall be 
pursuant to Section VI of the Zoning Ordinance and the Criteria for Evaluating Special 
Exceptions set forth in Section 506.9 shall apply.  A Special Exception may no be granted 
which would increase tower height above the permitted in Section 506.5. (**) 

 
506.8.2   Variance. An applicant may appeal to the Board for a variance from any applicable 
general zoning district regulation and from any other conditions or requirements in this 
Section 506 except Section 506.3.11 and Section 506.5. Appeals for a variance to 506.3.13 
shall not be considered unless the request is for not greater than a twenty-five percent (25%) 
reduction from the minimum setback; or for not greater than a ten percent (10%) reduction 
from the minimum setback from properties as described under Section 506.3.13.(a), (b) and 
(c) above, namely: residential properties, historic districts or public gathering places. (*) 

 
Appeals shall be made pursuant to Section 603.4 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
506.8.3  Consideration by Board.  Special exceptions and variances, may be applied for 
simultaneously and considered by the Board simultaneously. 

 
506.9 Criteria for Evaluating Special Exceptions and Variances. 

 
506.9.1   Application; Conditions.  All application requirements imposed by Section 506.7 of 
this ordinance are met. 

 
506.9.2   Setback Requirements, Additional Conditions.  Applicant has demonstrated that the 
proposed communication tower location is sufficient to satisfy setback requirements and 
satisfy such other additional conditions, if any, necessary to remove dangers to safety and to 
protect adjacent property. 

 
506.9.3 Denial on Substantial Evidence.  The Telecommunications Act of 1996 requires that 
a denial of a permit be supported by substantial evidence. 

 
 

* (Amended by Council 4/12/99)  ** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 
 
 
 

Page 38

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 

Section 507:  Planned Development Districts (PDD) (Page 195) 
 
 
507.3 Planned Development District Zoning Districts. (**) 

 
In addition to the Zoning Districts established by Section II, δ 201 of this Ordinance, the 
following zoning districts are hereby established for purposes of planned development 
districts: 
 
(1) R-15 PDD 
(2) R-12 PDD 
(3) R-8  PDD 
(4) R-6  PDD 
(5) GID  PDD 
(6) LOD  PDD 
(7) B-1  PDD 
(8) B-2  PDD 
(9) B-3  PDD 
(10) B-4  PDD 

 
507.4 Rezoning and Standards Necessary for Project Approval. 

 
The Planning Commission shall consider the proposed planned development district in the 
same manner they review zone changes.  In addition they shall review the submitted plans to 
determine conformity with the standards established by this Section, so as to achieve a 
maximum of coordination between the proposed development and the surrounding uses, the 
conservation of woodlands and the protection of water courses from erosion, siltation and 
pollution as required in Section V, 501.12 of this Ordinance.  To these ends the Planning 
Commission and City Council shall consider the location of buildings, parking areas and 
other features with respect to the topography of the area and existing features such as streams 
and large trees; the efficiency, adequacy, and safety of the proposed layout of internal streets 
and driveways; the adequacy and location of usable open space provided; the adequacy, 
location and screening where required; if the planned development district is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan; if the planned development district can be planned and developed to 
harmonize with any existing or proposed development in the area surrounding the project 
site, and such other matters as the Planning Commission and the City Council may find to 
have a material bearing upon the standards of this Section and the objectives of the Planned 
Development District Zone Regulations. 

507.5 Minimum Project Area. 
507.51 The minimum project area permitted in a residentially zoned planned 

development district shall contain a gross area of not less than three 
(3) acres.  The minimum project area permitted in a commercially 
zoned planned development district shall not be less than one (1) 
acre. (*) 

507.52 The minimum project area shall be adaptable to unified development and shall not have 
within or through the area any freeway or multi-lane thoroughfare as defined by the SPATS 
Plan which because of its. 

* (Amended by Council 7/10/78)   ** (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 

 
 

 

Page 39

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 
 

Section 507:  Planned Development Districts (PDD) (Page 195) 
 
 
 

(1.) GID PDD – Two thousand (2,000) square feet of lot area for each dwelling unit, 
except as provided in Section 507.71. (*) 

 

(2.) LOD PDD – Two thousand (2,000) square feet of lot area for each dwelling 
unit, except as provided in Section 507.71. (*) 

 

(3.) B-1 PDD – Fifteen hundred (1,500) square feet of lot area for each dwelling 
unit, except as provided in Section 507.71. 

 

(4.) B-2 PDD – No minimum lot area requirement is required if the usable open 
space requirement in Section 507.71 is fulfilled, otherwise a minimum lot area 
requirement of two hundred (200) square feet per dwelling unit is required. 

 

(5.) B-3 PDD – Five hundred (500) square feet of lot area for each dwelling unit 
except as provided in Section 507.71. 

 

(6.) B-4 PDD – Seven hundred fifty (750) square feet of lot area for each dwelling 
unit. Except as provided for in Section 507.71. 

 

507.71 Project Density Bonuses. 

 

A. In order to attract developers to utilize this Section, the applicant may be 
eligible for a ten percent (10%) density reduction upon application for a PDD 
zone change. 

B. The Planning Commission and City Council may further authorize a partial 
reduction in the lot area requirement in the planned development district net 
project area according to the following: 
(1) For distinctiveness and excellence in design and landscaping, a 

maximum reduction of five percent (5%). 
C. If the Planning Commission and City Council find that any of the following 

conditions would be created by a reduction of the lot area requirement 
permitted by this Section, it may either prohibit any reduction in lot area, or 
limit the reduction in lot area by an amount which is sufficient to avoid the 
creation of any of these conditions: 
(1) Inconvenient or unsafe access to the planned development district; 
(2) Traffic congestion in the streets which adjoin the planned development 

district; 
* (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 

Page 40

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 

Section 507:  Planned Development Districts (PDD) (Page 200) 
 

 

A. In residential planned development district zones usable open space shall be provided 
in whole or in part to any residential use as set forth below and conveniently located 
to all residents of the planned development district.  Such usable open space shall be 
provided at ground level.  The usable open space requirements for planned 
development districts in residential planned development district zones shall be as 
follows: 

 

(1.) R-15 PDD – Usable open space of not less than one thousand seven hundred 
(1,700) square feet per dwelling unit. 

 

(2.) R-12 PDD – Usable open space of not less than seventeen hundred (1,700) 
square feet per dwelling unit. 

 

(3.) R-8  PDD – Usable open space of not less than one thousand (1,000) square feet 
per dwelling unit. 

 

(4.) R-6  PDD – Usable open space of not less than seven hundred fifty (750) square 
feet per dwelling unit. 

 

B. In commercial planned development district zones usable open space shall be 
provided on each lot devoted in whole or in part to any residential use set forth.  In 
calculating the usable open space requirements in the commercial planned 
development district zones, (GID PDD, LOD PDD, B-1 PDD, B-3 PDD, B-4 PDD) 
there may be credited up to a maximum of seventy-five percent (75%) of the required 
open space area on any adequately surfaced roof deck being free of obstructions and 
improved and available for safe and convenient use to all occupants of the buildings, 
and in Zone B-2 PDD, there may be credited to the required open space area, an area 
of up to one hundred percent (100%) of the required open space in the form of an 
adequately surfaced roof deck being free of obstructions and improved and available 
for safe and convenient use to all occupants of the building.  The usable open space 
requirements for planned development district in commercial planned development 
district zones shall be as follows: (*) 

 

(1) GID  PDD – Usable open space of not less than five hundred (500) square feet 
per dwelling unit. (*) 

 

(2) LOD  PDD – Usable open space of not less than five hundred (500) square feet 
per dwelling unit. (*) 

 

(3) B-1  PDD – Usable open space of not less than four hundred fifty (450) square 
feet per dwelling unit. 

* (Further Amended by Council 10/8/01) 

 

Page 41

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 

Section 507:  Planned Development Districts (PDD) (Page 201) 
 

(4) B-2  PDD – Usable open space of not less than fifty (50) square feet per 
dwelling unit. 

 

(5) B-3  PDD – Usable open space of not less than seventy-five (75) square feet per 
dwelling unit. 

 

(6) B-4  PDD – Usable open space of not less than one hundred (100) square feet 
per dwelling unit. 

 

507.10 Sign Requirements. 

 

All signs in any residential planned development district shall be subject to the following 
conditions and requirements. 

 

A. The general regulations for all signs in residential planned development districts are 
as follows: 
(1) The erection, construction, location, retention, or placement of any sign in or 

over the public right-of-way shall be prohibited; 
(2) Merchandise such as tires, produce, and any other articles for sale shall not be 

located in any manner outside the principal structure; 
(3) Non-accessory signs are prohibited; 
(4) Roof signs are prohibited; and 
(5) Motor driven, rotating, flashing or intermittent lighting signs of any kind are 

prohibited. 
B. Signs permitted in residential planned development districts with less than six 

hundred (600) dwelling units are as follows: 
 

(1) Identification nameplates which identify a business occupancy, multi-family 
facility of planned development district project title, and shall not exceed four 
(4) square feet in area for each occupancy, provided, however, the total display 
surface of all such signs on a single property, building, or lot must not exceed 
twenty (20) square feet in area.  In addition, all identification nameplates shall 
be lighted only by indirect illumination and shall be attached to and erected flat 
against the wall of a building at a maximum height of six (6) feet above the 
grade level; 

(2) Signs of informational non-advertising nature for pedestrian or vehicular 
direction; 

(3) Temporary real estate signs not exceeding six (6) square feet in area with a 
maximum height of four (4) feet and no illumination is permitted; and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out



[Zoning Ordinance for City of Spartanburg,SC ] [Strike-Through Document ]  
All (B-2) to be replaced with D-T4 D-T5 D-T6 

All (Central Business District) to be replaced with Downtown Urban Code  

 

 

 
 
 

Section 512: Regulations for Video Casinos and Poker Machines (Page 253) 
 
 
δ  512. REGULATIONS FOR VIDEO CASINOS AND POKER MACHINES (*) 

 
512.1 Video Casinos.  Video casinos shall be permitted only in Zones I-1 (Light Industrial 

District) and Zone I-2 (Heavy Industrial District).  They shall be located at least 500 feet 
(from property line to property line) from any residential zone, public park, schools, 
church child care centers, hospitals, medical centers, public recreational centers, or 
nursing homes or assisted living facilities.  They shall be located at least 1000 feet (from 
property line to property line) from another video casino or property either on the 
National Register of Historic Places or property designated historic by the City of 
Spartanburg.  If a video casino serves alcoholic beverages to its customers, the video 
poker areas in the casino must be separated by walls from the sit down drinking areas.  
Video casinos shall not be permitted to have any exterior signage except the “green 
squares” permitted by state law that designates such “green squares” buildings as video 
casinos.  Any nonconforming video casino in existence as of the effective date of this 
ordinance shall be permitted to remain.  However, such nonconforming video casinos 
shall be amortized over a five-year period and then the use shall terminate. 

 
512.2 Poker Machines.  Video poker machines, up to a maximum of four per establishment 

may be permitted as an accessory use to any use permitted in Zones B-1, B-2, B-3 or B-4.  
Establishments with four or less video poker machines in them shall be located 500 feet 
(from property line to property line) from any residential zone, public park, school, 
church, child care center, hospital, medical center, public recreational center or nursing 
home or assisted living facility.  In addition, establishments with four or less video 
machines shall be located at least 1000 feet (from property line to property line) from 
another such establishment or from property either on the National Register of Historic 
Places or property designated historic by the City of Spartanburg.  If a permitted use such 
as a restaurant serves alcoholic beverages, the machine area within such establishment 
shall be separated by walls and segregated from the area where people are consuming 
alcoholic beverages.  No establishment with video licenses from the City and the State 
shall be permitted to transfer the video license to a new operator.  Transfer shall include 
any change in beneficial ownership of the establishment that exceeds fifty (50%) by 
single or multiple transactions.  If any such establishment has more than three video 
poker machines as of the effective date of this Ordinance, they shall be permitted to 
remain as such but shall be amortized over a five year period and then removed.  No 
business establishments located in these zones (B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4) shall be permitted 
any signage that call to the attention of the public that the establishment has machines on 
the premises. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

* (Amended - - Added as New Section by City Council 9/13/99) 
 

Page 43

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Text Box
D-T4 D-T5 D-T6

russell
Cross-Out

russell
Cross-Out



 

IX. A 

  
 



      REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
             
 
 

TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
  Mayor and Members of Council 
   
FROM: Cathy McCabe, City Attorney 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution Regarding the Consent of Council of the Reappointment of the Prosecutor by the 

City Attorney  
    

DATE:  September 5, 2012 
 
   
BACKGROUND:   
In September of 2011, City Council approved the appointment of the Law Firm of Wilkins & Bouton, LLC 
(“Firm”) as the City Prosecutor for one year.  After consulting with the Public Safety Department and 
Judge McJimpsey, all parties are pleased with the Firm’s performance. 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   
Approval of the recommendation and consenting to the reappointment of the Firm as the Prosecutor for the 
City and authorizing the City Manager or City Attorney to negotiate for a new one-year term for $48,000 
and annual evaluation by Public Safety and the Municipal Judge.  This is an increase of $3,000 to offset the 
additional duties for the increased volume of Circuit Court appearances. 
 
 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  
$48,000 annual payment.  This amount is in the budget.   



 
 

1

  

RESOLUTION REGARDING CONSENT OF COUNCIL 
 OF THE REAPPOINTMENT OF THE PROSECUTOR 

BY THE CITY ATTORNEY 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Law Firm of Wilkins & Bouton, LLC (“Firm”) has provided part-time 

prosecutorial services for the City of Spartanburg by contract since October 1, 2011; and 

 WHEREAS, the partners of the Firm are able criminal attorneys, Robert W. Wilkins and 

William I. Bouton; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Attorney is satisfied with the services provided by the Firm; and 

 WHEREAS, the Municipal Judge and the Public Safety Department are satisfied with the 

services provided by the Firm; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Attorney wishes to reappoint the Firm to provide part-time 

prosecutorial services for the City of Spartanburg and such reappointment requires the advice and 

consent of Council. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Mayor and Members of Council of the 

City of Spartanburg, in Council assembled: 

 Section 1.  Council hereby approves the reappointment by the City Attorney of the Law Firm 

of Wilkins & Bouton, LLC, to perform part-time prosecutorial services for the City of Spartanburg. 

 Section 2.  Council hereby authorizes the City Manager and/or the City Attorney to negotiate 

a one-year Contract with the Firm to provide these services for a contract amount of Forty-eight 

Thousand Dollars ($48,000.00) annually, payable monthly, with the Contract to further provide for 

the Municipal Judge and Public Safety the opportunity to annually evaluate the services of the Firm.  

 Section 3.  The City Manager is to provide an office in City Hall for the Firm and provide 



 
 

2

  

administrative support for the prosecutorial services. 

 Section 4.  This Resolution shall become effective upon the date of enactment. 

 This Resolution adopted this _____ day of ____________________, 2012. 

 
 
       ___________________________________ 
        Junie L. White, Mayor. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk. 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________ 
Cathy Hoefer McCabe, City Attorney. 
 
 
 
 




